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Introductory
Section

North Central Texas Council of Governments

The Executive Board
North Central Texas Council of Governments
Arlington, Texas

February 15, 2013

Members of the Executive Board:
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the North Central Texas Council of Governments
(NCTCOG, ‘the Council’ or ‘the Agency’) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, is hereby
submitted. This report was prepared for the Agency by NCTCOG’s Department of Administration.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Agency. To the best of our knowledge and belief
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is organized in a manner designed to fairly
present the financial position and results of operations of NCTCOG as measured by the financial
activity of its various funds. We believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the Council’s financial affairs have been included.
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) includes the Management Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) within the financial section immediately following the independent auditor’s report.
The MD&A is a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it.
NCTCOG is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
“Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations.” Information related to the single
audit, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and
other independent auditor’s reports on the single audit, are included with this report and can be found
at the end of the report.
The Financial Section described above is prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and other professional associations as applicable.
Organizational Profile
The NCTCOG is a voluntary association of cities, counties, school districts, and special districts within
the 16-county North Central Texas region. NCTCOG was established in January 1966, authorized by
State enabling legislation (Chapter 391 – Local Government Code), to assist local governments in
planning for common needs, cooperating for mutual benefit and coordinating for sound regional
development. The 16-county region for NCTCOG was designated by the Governor’s Office of the
State of Texas.
The Agency is an organization of, by, and for local governments. Its purpose is to strengthen both
the individual and collective power of local governments – and to help them recognize regional
opportunities, resolve regional problems, eliminate unnecessary duplication, and make joint regional
decisions – as well as to develop the means to assist in the implementation of those decisions. The
NCTCOG is governed by a general assembly composed of one voting representative from each of
the 238 member governments and the Executive Board, which is composed of 13 local officials
elected by the General Assembly.
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North Central Texas consists of a 16-county metropolitan region centered around the cities of Dallas
and Fort Worth. It has a population of over 6.6 million, which is larger than 30 states, and an area of
12,800 square miles, which is larger than nine states. NCTCOG’s 238 member governments are
comprised of 16 counties, 167 municipalities, 24 independent school districts, and 31 special purpose
districts.
The Council’s functional activities include responsibilities in the following areas – community services,
emergency preparedness, environment & development, a regional training center, a research and
information services center, transportation, and workforce development.
Economic Condition and Outlook
NCTCOG’s regional population increased by approximately 56,160 persons during 2011 for a
January 1, 2012 total estimated population of 6.6 million.
The December 2012 unadjusted unemployment rate for the 16 county NCTCOG region was 5.7%,
which was slightly below the Texas rate of 6.0% and well below the comparable national figure of
7.9%.
Despite the economic concerns of the last few years, NCTCOG expects there to be more than 10
million people and over 6 million jobs in the area by 2040. The Region’s relatively low cost of living,
central location, transportation hubs, good business climate, favorable weather, and quality schools
make it a competitive area nationally for business relocations. Migration, both from within the U.S.
and internationally, is expected to continue to drive growth in North Central Texas well into the future.
New Initiatives
Transportation (TR)
During FY2012, the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) Transportation
Department worked on a number of new initiatives. The Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport (DFW
Airport) Transit Services Study began in FY2012 to identify airport-area transit service needs when
the Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) Orange Line service reached the DFW Airport Terminal A
Station. Also included in the study was an analysis of potential service changes to accommodate the
TEX Rail service scheduled to reach the DFW Airport Terminal B Station in late 2016. An interim
step identified transit service changes that were to be implemented when the Orange Line service
reached the Belt Line Road Station in December 2012. Overall project efforts included consultant
selection, data collection, data analysis, alternatives development, report preparation and
coordination with transportation partners. A public participation process involving current and
potential transit users, as well as DFW Airport employers, was also completed.
As a pilot project, NCTCOG Transportation Department staff coordinated with the Texas
Transportation Institute (TTI) to study real-world emissions from heavy-duty diesel vehicles to
determine the feasibility of a diesel Inspection and Maintenance (I/M) program in the State of Texas.
During FY2012, TTI, with cooperation from the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS), collected
data at the New Waverly Weigh Station in New Waverly, Texas for the duration of 10 days.
Emissions data was gathered from about 1,400 heavy-duty diesel vehicles (HDDVs) using remote
sensing technology and over 1,200 drivers were interviewed on their vehicle types and travel
destinations. Upon collecting the data, analysis was conducted throughout the year, with the pilot
program scheduled to conclude in FY2013.
NCTCOG received $75,000 from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to
conduct an emissions inventory of on-road, heavy-duty diesel truck traffic serving Barnett Shale sites
within the Metropolitan Planning Area. This study, Development of Oil and Gas Mobile Source
Inventory in the Barnett Shale in the 12-County Dallas-Fort Worth Area, included a range of tasks
including surveys of industry participants, mapping of wells that produce natural gas and saltwater
disposal wells that accept wastewater from producing wells, development of a special module of the
Travel Demand Model to estimate vehicle miles of travel (VMT), and calculation of emissions
ii

associated with both VMT traveled and with extended idling. NCTCOG staff estimated that the onroad, heavy-duty diesel trucks that serve this industry produce approximately 4.07 tons of nitrogen
oxides per day in 2012. Staff also identified several opportunities to revise key assumptions and
improve upon emission estimates, which may result in new phases of study.
NCTCOG received $19,500 to participate in the Texas Triangle Plug-In Electric Vehicle Readiness
Plan, which was led by the Center for the Commercialization of Electric Technologies (CCET). CCET
identifies the Texas Triangle region as the area between the Dallas-Fort Worth, Austin, San Antonio,
and Houston metropolitan areas, which contains much of the State’s population. The effort involved
identifying ways to overcome the barriers that prevent the smaller cities and towns in the Texas
Triangle from being ready to adopt electric vehicles (EVs), exploring what EV readiness issues might
be better handled at the State level, finding appropriate ways to educate Texas consumers in an
unbiased way about EVs, and identifying technical issues relating to reliability of the electric grid and
how it interacts with EVs. A final report was published and addressed at a public meeting hosted at
NCTCOG.
In July 2011, the Regional Transportation Council allocated $250,000 to investigate the feasibility of
developing a regional mitigation bank and to explore opportunities to consolidate and leverage
environmental commitments of individual projects towards a more regional approach. This work is
designated as the Shared-Value Regional Resource Mitigation initiative (formerly identified as
Regional Environmental Mitigation). Work began on these two initiatives in FY2012. Resource
agency profiles have been compiled to facilitate future discussions on strategic long-term mitigation
initiatives and potential policy/funding constraints. It is anticipated that outreach to resource agencies
and transportation partners will begin early in 2013.
While the Dallas Streetcar project was initiated in FY2011, additional funding was received and
significant progress occurred in FY2012. Working in partnership with the City of Dallas and Dallas Area
Rapid Transit (DART), NCTCOG serves as the federal grantee for the initial starter line of streetcar
passenger rail service from downtown Dallas to Oak Cliff. This 1.5 mile starter segment will travel from
Union Station along Houston Street, across the Trinity River along the Houston Street Viaduct, and
terminate near Methodist Hospital. The City of Dallas serves as project “Owner” and DART serves as
the “Owner’s Technical Representative” responsible for design, environmental clearance, construction,
and operations. In FY2012, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) agreements were amended to include
an additional $3 million in Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery Program
(TIGER) funds provided to the project for a total of $26 million in federal TIGER funds. The additional
$3 million is intended to construct a passing track to allow for a higher level of service for the streetcar
starter project. Significant progress towards project implementation was achieved in FY2012 in the
following areas: 1) interlocal agreements were negotiated and approved by the three partners defining
responsibilities in project financing and project operations; 2) final design and environmental clearance
was completed and approved by FTA; and 3) a design/build contractor was procured, selected, and
awarded a contract. The opening of revenue service is scheduled for October 2014.
Investigations of future opportunities for high speed rail serving North Texas occurred in FY2012
working in collaboration with both international private-sector teams and with the Texas Department
of Transportation (TxDOT) Rail Division. NCTCOG staff provided data and coordinated with a
Japanese-led private-sector consortium conducting technical and financial due diligence on a DallasFort Worth to Houston high speed rail corridor. Presentations were provided to the RTC High Speed
Rail Subcommittee on a quarterly basis in FY2012 apprising committee members of the privatesector consortium’s progress on technology, alignment, station locations, and financial analysis. In
addition, NCTCOG staff initiated efforts to support a TxDOT-led study of two potential high speed rail
corridors: (1) south Texas to Dallas-Fort Worth to Oklahoma City high speed rail corridor, and (2)
Dallas-Fort Worth to Houston high speed rail corridor. Both of these TxDOT public-sector led studies
are funded by federal US Department of Transportation High Speed Rail program grant funds.
NCTCOG staff efforts will continue in FY2013 including technology evaluation, station site location
evaluation, ridership analysis and public involvement support.
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The Tarrant County Needs Assessment began in FY2012. The study focuses on the transportation
needs of older adults, persons with disabilities, low-income individuals, and other groups within
Tarrant County that are transit dependent. The study will assess current and future conditions in the
county; inventory all existing public transportation services; and develop options for new, improved, or
better coordinated transit services. The expected outcome is a series of short-term strategies to meet
the transportation needs for the target population to travel into and around Tarrant County. Strategies
will include cost estimates and funding options. Prioritization will be determined by stakeholders and
agencies involved in implementation.
The purpose of the Collin, Rockwall, Kaufman and Ellis Counties Transit Needs Assessment and
Planning Study is to address the needs of several communities and public transportation providers in
the region as they face continued intense population growth, public transportation funding challenges,
and service coordination barriers. NCTCOG staff led the procurement of a consultant to perform a
transit needs assessment and planning study for these four counties in the North Central Texas
region. This effort, currently mid-way through development, will result in a useful planning document
for each county that identifies existing conditions, details existing needs for public transportation,
describes future growth of those needs, and provides a realistic menu of transit options that could be
implemented in the next three-to-five years.
An update to the Regional Public Transportation Coordination Plan was initiated in FY2012. The plan
update, Access North Texas, focuses on increasing efficiencies in public and human service
transportation to better serve older adults, people with disabilities, low-income individuals and other
groups with transportation challenges. The planning effort involves data collection and analysis as
well as meetings with a wide variety of stakeholders in the 16-county planning area to identify needs
and resources, identify gaps in service, and prioritize strategies to address those gaps. As the plan is
updated, ongoing efforts to implement the previous plan continue in the form of maintaining strong
community, provider, and stakeholder relationships as well as improving staff and public awareness
of transportation providers.
The Value Pricing Pilot Program was initiated to establish local programs and gather information
about the role that various types of value pricing methods can plan in improving the efficiency of the
transportation system and in dealing with congestion, pollution, energy, and other problems related to
automobile use in congested areas. This project focuses on the IH 30 corridor between downtown
Dallas and Arlington. NCTCOG and its regional partners will implement a pilot to develop incentives
and determine which ones are the most effective in changing travel behavior such as mode and time
of travel. NCTCOG has procured a consultant to begin work on one initiative, a casual carpooling
application to allow travelers to carpool in real-time. This is one of many pilots that will be tested as
part of this project.
In FY2012, the Regional Transportation Council approved over $2 million in Regional Toll Revenue
(RTR) funds for the implementation and administration of RTR-funded transportation and air quality
projects in the North Central Texas Council of Governments Metropolitan Area. This program
includes the planning, oversight, management, assessment, monitoring and administration of
transportation and air quality initiatives in the region from FY2013 to FY2016. Although this program
began in FY2008 using another funding source, additional funding was needed to maintain the high
transparency and accountability standards set by the Regional Transportation Council.
Community Services (CS)
Interoperable Communications
Specific work on the four-county Overlay (Collin, Dallas, Denton, Tarrant counties) continued after its
installation and testing late in 2010. This included the assignment of IDs and the development and
editing of an interoperability course for first responders. The Overlay project was completed, tested,
and made operational in late December 2010. However, the assignment of ID numbers is ongoing
through 2012 and 2013 by the former NCTCOG Communications Coordinator who currently is
employed by the City of Dallas.
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In addition, an instructor and student lesson plan was drafted in 2011 as train the trainer material for
interoperable communications introductory classes. The material for both Instructor and Student
manuals was edited during 2012 and is currently under concerted review. The new manuals (eight
chapters) should be completed by June or July of 2013.
Local public safety personnel and elected officials were notified many times about the narrow-banding
deadline of January 1, 2013 and encouraged to make their equipment ready before the deadline.
State Homeland Security Grant Program funds and the Urban Area Security Initiative funds supported
the planning and coordination assistance for narrow-banding to the following participating agencies:
the cities of Grapevine, $5,260; Pantego, $910; Burleson, $18,830; University Park, $1,890; and
Kaufman, $2,920; and the counties of Parker, $15,815; Kaufman, $15,395; and Erath, $7,445 totaling
$68,465, which is divided among the funding sources accordingly, $58,395 from 2011 SHSP; $5,260
from 2011 UASI; and $4,810 from 2012 SHSP.
The Interoperable Communications Governance Committee met to review the progress on the
Overlay and to monitor / approve other related communications projects. New members were
appointed to the Committee in August 2012 after some members’ three-year terms had run their
course or reassignments or retirements occurred. The Committee will continue to provide oversight
on communications matters as the Overlay is planned to expand to other parts of the region if
additional funds are provided. Members of the Governance Committee’s Technical Subcommittee
met with DPS and Parker County to consider an interoperable solution for five western counties in the
region.
NCTCOG provided first responder training by hosting and coordinating a Communications Unit
Leaders (COML) Course.
Also, NCTCOG provided technical assistance responses to requests from local public safety
agencies. Subjects covered trouble-shooting systems’ problems, communications gap analysis,
providing IDs for use by the Overlay agencies, and other topics. NCTCOG provided information
updating the Regional Communications Plan during a meeting on August 15, 2012 in Austin for use in
the Statewide Communications Interoperability Plan (SCIP).
The Communications Gap Analysis Project’s preliminary work was a focus during the latter part of
2012. Host sites were agreed upon and contacted, email addresses were researched, letters were
drafted to introduce the consultant, RCC, and a working map of participating agencies was prepared
for consultant use. RCC’s work will begin in early February with a completion date of December 31,
2013.
Criminal Justice Planning
In fiscal year 2012 the Criminal Justice Program focused its efforts on meeting the “Contract for
Services” requirements with the Criminal Justice Division (CJD), Office of the Governor. As a result,
technical and operational assistance was provided to more than 225 public and private agencies for
new or continuations of criminal justice programs, grant application workshops, preparation of grant
applications, community plan updates, and to meet the administrative requirements of the Criminal
Justice Division.
The Law Enforcement Analysis Portal (LEAP) project continued to progress in fiscal year 2012. The
LEAP project design is being expanded to connect law enforcement agencies along drug and human
trafficking corridors, as well as the auto theft corridor to El Paso, Houston, San Antonio, Austin, and
Corpus Christi. Cooperative agreements have been developed with Tarleton State University to
provide LEAP services to their rural law enforcement service area in 100 counties. Designated High
Intensity Drug Trafficking Area’s in Houston and Dallas will be connected via Automatic License Plate
Recognition systems to identify vehicles of interest. In addition, discussions are continuing with
neighboring states to implement LEAP’s analysis tools within their jurisdictions.
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Aging Services
During Fiscal Year 2012, Aging continued its shift towards programs that serve persons of all ages
and programs that have proven benefits.
Although its legacy is in serving older adults, Aging also served younger persons with disabilities
through its nursing home relocation program, benefits counseling program, and Aging and Disability
Resource Center. Supported by more than $1 million in non-Title III funding, it helped more than 100
nursing home residents under the age of 60 return to community living; provided counseling and
application assistance to young Medicare beneficiaries with disabilities; and helped persons of all
ages with disabilities access community-based services that promoted independent living.
Diversification of Aging funding sources is critical to expansion efforts. During Fiscal Year 2013,
funding for nursing home relocation services and the Aging and Disability Resource Center is
expected to increase, while funding for traditional services under the Older Americans Act remains
flat or declines.
In a shift from measuring outputs (e.g., number of home-delivered meals provided to homebound
clients) to outcomes, Aging added two new-evidence based programs in Fiscal Year 2012.
To help older adults with chronic disease better manage their symptoms, Aging launched the
Stanford Chronic Disease Self-Management Program (CDSMP). The program relies on thoroughly
trained lay leaders and a structured curriculum to guide small groups of participants through a sixweek class series that addresses topics including: managing pain, dealing with stress, improving
sleep, and communicating with health care providers.
Aging also implemented the HomeMeds program during Fiscal Year 2012. As case managers
conduct home visits, they input data on clients’ medications—both prescription and over-thecounter—into a customized software system that searches for potential contraindications. As
needed, a consulting pharmacist reviews the medication profiles and works with clients, pharmacists,
and physicians to reduce risk of medication interactions.
The CDSMP and HomeMeds program bring the Agency’s portfolio of evidence-based programs to
four. Aging also sponsors “A Matter of Balance” fall prevention classes and the Care Transitions
Program, which relies on home visits and phone support to help older adults with recent
hospitalizations avoid potentially preventable readmissions.
Regional Training Center
A total of forty-six Texas Commission on Environmental Quality conventional testing sessions were
held. RTC completed all requirements for implementation of Computer-Based Testing through Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality. A total of fourteen testing sessions were held.
One hundred twenty-five American Heart Association offsite classes were held by affiliated training
sites.
Through an agreement signed in FY 2011, Texas Certified Public Manager (CPM) Program offered
by the William P. Hobby Center for Public Service held an additional fourteen sessions of their
program at RTC’s facility in FY 2012
During the fiscal year, RTC continued support of grant-funded Transportation general classes and
Freeway Incident Management (FIM) classes. One hundred forty-seven students completed the FIM
class for 2012. Ninety-two received TCLOSE credit.
New classes added in 2012 include a Spanish First Aid/CPR class, Innovative Financing Strategies
for Transportation Projects, Making Meetings Matter: Effective Meeting Strategies, Math Basics,
Residential Energy Code Update Workshop, TCEQ Computer-Based Testing, Texas Public
Information Act for Law Enforcement and Question and Answer Session with State of Texas Office of
the Attorney General, The 5 Choices to Extraordinary Productivity - Franklin Covey, and URISA
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Certified Workshop- An Introduction to Public Participation GIS: Using GIS to Support Community
Decision Making.
Regional Law Enforcement Training
During 2011/2012, the Regional Police Academy conducted Five Basic Peace Officer Courses and
graduated 117 new law enforcement officers from throughout the NCTCOG region. The Regional
Police Academy conducted more than 110 law enforcement training courses for in service officers
providing 138,484 contact hours of training to 1,757 law enforcement officers.
9-1-1
The NCTCOG 9-1-1 Program spent 2012 implementing two major projects that were contracted in
2011. A Multi Node 9-1-1 system solution was implemented and the previous four system hosts
were duplicated. All eight new hosts were moved to two geographically diverse data centers to
alleviate power issues at the PSAPs and mitigate future outages. One data center is located in
Dallas and the other at the NCTCOG offices. The data centers are mirror images of one another and
work dynamically to ensure coverage and operations at all times.
NCTCOG also began
implementation of features and functionalities that will turn our IP network into an Emergency
Services IP network. This is a progression of the Next Generation 9-1-1 Migration plan and will
continue to be implemented in 2013.
The NCTCOG 9-1-1 staff has also implemented a “one-page planning” process to increase
accountability, assist with prioritization, and enhance tracking of accomplishments and challenges.
Due to a cut in budget of approximately 24%, NCTCOG 9-1-1 did not have the funding to begin any
new projects. However, planning has begun for the implementation of a free interim text to 9-1-1
solution early in 2013.
Emergency Preparedness (EP)
In FY2012, the North Central Texas Council of Governments region received approximately $15.5
million in Homeland Security Grant Program (HSGP) funding from the Department of Homeland
Security (DHS) through the Texas State Administrative Agency (SAA). These funds were in two
areas, which include the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) at almost $14.3 million in funding, and
the State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) at almost $1.2 million. These funds were appropriated
to enhance and sustain the region’s capacity to prevent, protect, mitigate, respond to, and recover
from acts of terrorism. Specific needs identified in the region include emergency planning,
organization, equipment, training, and exercises.
FY2012 brought a focused approach to address specific capabilities that included; sustaining and
enhancing Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear, Explosive, and Weapons of Mass
Destruction(CBRNE-WMD) response, enhancing regional and local emergency operations centers,
enhancing intelligence and information sharing, enhancing citizen preparedness and protection,
enhancing interoperable communications, and protecting critical infrastructure and key resources.
Despite an overall reduction in funds in FY2012, the region dedicated portions of the SHSP grant to
fund a critical regional full scale exercise, which will take place in September of 2013, as well as a
GAP Analysis of the region’s operable and interoperable communications abilities. In addition, Phase
II of the Regional Asset Tracking Tool (RATT) was implemented to include a separate layer for
deployable assets, the ability for jurisdictions to manipulate data, and other regular updates. The
RATT is a database that the North Central Texas region utilizes to view grant assets, specialty team
capability assessments, and specific deployable assets which aid in resource detection during times
of response.
NCTCOG EP staff also provided technical assistance to the region in the statewide grants
management system, State Preparedness and Reporting System (SPARS) for HSGP grants. This
technical assistance provided the coordination between various programs thus reducing redundancy
and improving effectiveness for both the jurisdictions and the state administrators. EP staff also
assisted with eligibility such as emergency management plans, National Incident Management
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System (NIMS) requirements, and other federal and state requirements. Staff also updated the
Regional Training and Exercise Plan (RTEP). The RTEP is a federally mandated document to
coordinate training and exercises across grant streams, within the Homeland Security Exercise and
Evaluation Program (HSEEP).
The Emergency Preparedness Department’s Regional Emergency Preparedness Member Program
adapted to changing needs by providing timely information, planning assistance, and support services
to stakeholders in FY2012. For instance, expanding on the concept of addressing current regional
needs through workshops and seminars, the Emergency Preparedness Department hosted several
capability-building events. Topics for workshops held throughout the year included information on
mutual aid, regional emergency warning systems, entitled Integrated Warning Team, and disaster
recovery challenges and best practices. The events were hosted in response to member requests for
assistance as well as topics identified within the department. Several special committees and groups
were established through the program, including the Public Works Emergency Response Team,
regional mutual aid committees, among others.
Responding to spontaneous member needs, new services were tested in FY2012, including exercise
moulage (disaster makeup) assistance, resulting in its continuation as a member service for FY2013.
The federal Citizen Corps Grant was suspended in FY2012, but carve-out funding from the region’s
State Homeland Security and Urban Area Security Initiative grants allowed for continuation of
regional Citizen Corps Program oversight through the Emergency Preparedness Department.
Collaborative program efforts and Regional Citizen Corps Council support resulted in a record
number of Teen CERT programs delivered in the region. In April, local Citizen Corps programs
demonstrated their discipline, knowledge and expertise as over sixteen CERT and Fire Corps teams
responded to calls for tornado response and recovery assistance.
The NCTCOG Emergency Preparedness Department contracted with the Department of State Health
Services (DSHS) for the continued implementation of the Cities Readiness Initiative (CRI) program.
The FY2012 allocation of $477,648 provided eight rural counties with project management support,
special funding, training, and equipment. The goal of the CRI Program is to develop plans and
infrastructure so that these jurisdictions may be prepared to provide mass prophylaxis to their entire
population within 48 hours of a public health emergency.
The Emergency Preparedness Department is currently in the hazard mitigation action planning
process for twelve of sixteen counties in the NCTCOG region including updating the Dallas County
and Tarrant County Local Mitigation Strategy. The approved and adopted Local Mitigation Strategies
(Multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Action Plans) will allow participating jurisdictions to be eligible for
future mitigation funding. The purpose of mitigation funding is to assist communities in reducing or
eliminating their vulnerability to natural hazards. Potential projects include, but are not limited to:
developing individual shelter programs, acquiring property in flood plains, and hardening
infrastructure.
In FY2012, updates were made to the Emergency Preparedness Department’s Regional Hazard
Assessment Tool (RHAT), developed during FY2011. This dynamic mapping and regional
assessment reporting tool assists emergency preparedness stakeholders in the North Central Texas
region by addressing unmet needs in hazard identification and analysis. These needs include timely
information for vulnerability assessments, risk analysis, emergency management planning and
decision making. In late summer 2012, the RHAT was updated to include wind, hail and tornado data
through April 2012, drought data through July 2012, and earthquake data through August 2012. The
RHAT updates provide North Central Texas emergency managers the most comprehensive hazard
information available to date at a single site.
The department continued to explore financial support for the relocation of the Collaborative Adaptive
Sensing of the Atmosphere (CASA WX) test bed to the Dallas Fort Worth area (DFW demonstration
network). NCTCOG signed agreements with the University of Texas at Arlington, University of North
Texas, and the Town of Addison to serve as host sites for donated radars. The first radar in the
viii

network was installed at the University of Texas at Arlington in October 2012. The department worked
with the region both on securing the funding to install and support the network as well as finding
locations for future radar host sites within the region. CASA’s focus is a new weather observation
system paradigm based on low power, low cost networks of radars. CASA would provide more
effective user defined weather data that in turn would increase situational awareness at the local level
and across the region. This increase in data could enhance life-saving decision making during severe
weather and other inclement times.
Environment & Development (E&D)
The overall theme for NCTCOG’s environmental resource and development initiatives continues to be
Sustainable Environmental Excellence or SEE. SEE is intended to guide NCTCOG’s efforts, and
ultimately the region’s, in regards to planning for the future of this growing and changing area in a
collaborative and cost-effective way for the benefit of all North Central Texas. The Department of
Environment and Development (E&D) addresses SEE through three different program areas – SEE
Less Trash-Solid Waste, SEE Safe Clean and Green-Watershed Management, and SEE
Development Excellence.
In the SEE Less Trash program area, 12 local government projects were administered totaling
approximately $563,000.
The Resource Conservation Council’s three solid waste goal
subcommittees (Time to Recycle, Stop Illegal Dumping, and Assuring Capacity for Trash)
administered their portions of the Regional Solid Waste Plan document. Eleven educational/training
workshops were offered in fiscal year 2012 and 121 technical assistance requests to local
governments were recorded.
In the SEE Safe, Clean and Green Watershed Management arena, meetings with committees,
stakeholders, and interest groups regarding the region’s watersheds continued, with arrangements
negotiated with the City of Fort Worth to undertake a Greenprinting analysis of the Lake Worth
watershed. The Trinity River COMMON VISION program continued an update of regulatory mapping
and modeling for the upper Trinity area. The Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan
draft was developed in cooperation with watershed stakeholders for the bacteria TMDL and the
advance draft was submitted to the TCEQ for initial review.
The Regional Storm Water Management Program continued to support over 60 local participants and
provided a variety of products including training workshops, support for four seasonal campaigns, an
annual storm water monitoring report, cooperative purchase opportunities, and an IDDE Field
Guidance Manual. The 2012 Water Quality Management Plan for North Central Texas was submitted
as the annual amended plan for state and federal agency review and comment.
In SEE Development Excellence, support for the Center of Development Excellence and the 12
Principles of Development Excellence continued. Several presentations were made to local
governments and community groups by the Vision North Texas Speakers Bureau, supported by
NCTCOG staff. The SPROW (Sustainable Public Right of Way) interactive website was maintained
and expanded. The iSWM Criteria Manual adoption process continued and several new communities
are utilizing the materials. A Mapping Activity Statement was launched as a part of our Cooperating
Technical Partner relationship with FEMA. Additionally, through partnering with FEMA and TFMA
(Texas Floodplain Managers Association), Environment and Development again held a Managing
Floodplains through the National Flood Insurance Program four-day course and hosted the TFMA
Certified Floodplain Manager (CFM) Exam. Staff also facilitated review of the 2012 International
Codes for selection construction sectors and worked toward final proposed regional amendments for
the various codes.
Research and Information Services (RIS)
The RIS Research Team provides data and analytical support to both internal and external
customers. A variety of datasets that are valuable for regional and local planning are developed and
maintained. These include:
 The major developments table, which tracts significant commercial structures and other
features and now has over 16,600 records;
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Development of a 2010 land use layer;
Update of various geographic layers including city boundaries and roads;
Development of base datasets and methodologies for demographic forecasts in conjunction
with the Transportation Department;
Small-area population and employment information; and
Annual population and housing estimates.

The RIS Information Technology Team responded to 7,910 officially posted Agency and Workforce
support requests. These requests included new computer requests, software management, and
network connectivity between 16 sites spread across the region for phone and computer access.
The IT Team has continued to assist with the management and operations of several critical
enterprise computer environments that support and serve data used throughout the region. One such
system is the Data Management System for the Public Employees Benefit Cooperative where benefit
information from 5 agencies is combined to leverage volume to receive discounted health care benefit
services for over 14,000 people.
The IT Team has greatly enhanced the network to support regional workforce operations through
expansion and redesign of existing networks at each center that includes redundant paths and
additional bandwidth. The IT Team also continues to work with The OneStar Foundation based in
Austin to create a statewide web based tool for assessing the dispersion of social service
organizations and funding to those agencies. This tool will be used to identify gaps in service and
funding statewide to ensure Texans have access to the services they need. IT also continues to
implement advanced communication and collaboration tools that allow for enhanced communication
across the region. Among these systems is a Microsoft SharePoint Environment that allows for
collaboration on data and documents with staff across the region.
The RIS Information Security (IS) team examines changes and additions to enterprise systems in
order to identify risks to the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of those systems. The IS team
also works to find and mitigate previously unidentified risks in existing systems. One such risk is the
exposure of the Agency’s laptops to malicious Web sites, when those computers are off-site and
disconnected from the Agency’s network. Many times these devices would return to the office with
malware infections that threatened the overall security of the network. IS mitigated this risk by
expanding the use of our existing Web security gateway to include a cloud-based solution that
provides the same protections to laptops whether they are off-site or connected at the office.
The IS team also looks to improve the ease-of-use of security technologies, while at the same time
update or add to their functionality and effectiveness. As an example, the IS team implemented a
new Virtual Private Networking (VPN) solution that has far outperformed our former solution in
employee satisfaction with its ease-of-use, increased feature flexibility, and updated network defense
capabilities.
In addition to technological improvements to the Agency’s security posture, IS continues to educate
employees on the importance of adhering to security policies and continues to inform employees
about current threats and safe computing practices. This is achieved through new employee
orientation sessions, e-mail alerts, and monthly newsletters.

Workforce Development (WD)
Board staff is actively engaged in a number of projects and initiatives beyond the scope of our
Workforce Investment Act (WIA) activities and contract management.
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is dedicated to helping job seekers prepare for the
workforce. Through the Workforce Investment Act (WIA), we are able to provide funding to
individuals to gain the skills necessary for high-growth, in-demand occupations leading to successful
careers. Our WIA programs are divided into three different service groups: adult, dislocated workers
and youth.
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This past year, we served almost 75,000 customers in our workforce centers and provided training to
685 individuals. With over 46,000 employers in our region, we remain dedicated and focused on
strengthening their workforce and rebuilding the economy. Our work has led to the re-employment of
nearly 26,000, unemployment insurance claimants.
In late 2010, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas began exploring the concept of becoming a
High Performance Organization. In early 2012, we were full force in becoming a High Performance
Organization, creating and implementing an environment where the employee has greater
involvement and responsibility. During this process, we chose to rethink the standard organizational
practices, creating efficient workflow methods to be implemented in our workforce centers. Several
performance improvement teams are currently working on process and design improvements within
our workforce system. This process will provide valuable feedback to validate the effectiveness of
our actions and help us identify additional tactics to enable further success.
In 2010, we received a $2.8 million grant from the U.S. Department of Labor to conduct training
through the Certified Logistics Associate and Certified Logistics Technician programs in the
Dallas/Fort Worth and Houston regions. Since the inception of the grant we have certified 654
individuals and by the end of the grant in 2013, 879 individuals will be certified through these
programs. Our initiative to meet the workforce challenges of the logistics industry has received many
accolades and awards. The Certified Logistics Associate and Certified Logistics Technician
programs are the first industry recognized, nationally portable logistic certifications, for front-line
workers. As of November 2012, this program had expanded into 341 authorized assessment centers
in 22 states.
In April of 2012, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas was awarded a $4,991,839 grant from
the Department of Labor (DOL). The grant is the second round of funding under the H-1B Technical
Skills Training Grant Competition. The funding is currently being utilized locally to provide education,
training, and job placement assistance in the fields of information technology (IT), science,
technology, engineering, and math (STEM). Our grant partnership includes IBM, Lockheed Martin,
AT&T, Labinal, Business Control Systems, and North Central Texas College.
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas will train 4,151 individuals in courses which lead to
certifications and/or industry credentials in the IT and STEM industries. This training will allow 3,951
incumbent workers to upgrade their skills and help workers advance in the career pathway; ultimately
reducing the employer’s reliance on foreign workers. An additional 200 long-term unemployed
individuals with education and work experience in the IT and STEM industries will be trained through
the project to update their skills in these rapidly evolving occupations. STEM training will be
conducted through North Central Texas College and within our business partner’s current operation.
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas’ youth program was allocated $4 million to operate
comprehensive services primarily engaging and assisting disadvantaged youth in gaining and
maintaining employment. Our services are customized for each youth, focusing on individual
strengths and how to ultimately overcome barriers that hinder their successful transition into
employment.
Service elements provided to our youth include:
 Tutoring, study skills, and dropout prevention strategies
 Summer employment opportunities linked to academic and occupational learning
 Paid work experience, on-the-job training
 Occupational skills training
 Leadership development activities
 Community-based volunteer programs
 Work readiness workshops
 Supportive services
 Mentoring, guidance and counseling
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Individual case management and follow-up service

During the past year, we provided services to almost 800 youth, offering post-secondary education to
128 individuals, and placing over 200 youth into paid work experience training opportunities.
During Fiscal Year 2012, we trained over 750 child care professionals in early learning and child
development by offering Saturday workshops throughout our service area. Some of the areas we
provided training in included: Children with Disabilities, Health and Safety, Developmentally
Appropriate Practices, Brain Research and Development, How to Identify Child Abuse and Neglect,
Child Development and Business Management.
We provided Child Development Associate (CDA) classes, a 20 week/120 hour course, in Collin and
Ellis counties. A total of 80 child care professionals completed the courses. Once a child care
professional completed the classes they were eligible to apply for their Child Development Associate
Credential. It is the most widely recognized credential and is a key step towards career advancement
in early childhood education. Based on a core set of competency standards, the CDA credential
guides early care professionals towards becoming qualified teachers of young children. Each child
care professional that completed the 120 hour course was awarded a $1000 stipend.
Child Care Professionals also attended the Early Childhood Management Institute to receive their
Child Care Director’s credential. This is one of very few programs recognized by the Texas
Department of Family and Protective Services (TDFPS) Child Care Licensing Division for meeting
Director’s requirements. Twenty five (25) participants completed this course and passed a written
exam to receive their credential.
Workforce Development continued to offer the highly successful Texas Back to Work initiative, which
began in 2009. Employers were given monetary incentives of up to $2,000 for hiring qualified out-ofwork Texans.
The purpose of the program was to establish public/private partnerships with employers in the local
workforce development areas, targeting first-time unemployment insurance claimants. The primary
goal was to aid Texans’ in a timely reintegration into the workforce with the appropriate skills needed
to be successful on the job and to reduce reliance on public assistance. Through this initiative, we
placed 1,796 unemployed job seekers in our region with 849 different employers and paid out $2.4
million.
Over 23,000 placements were made in this initiative across the State. Texas was awarded a
Department of Labor Innovation award for the work done in the program and other states are now
replicating the Texas model.
Our Mobile Workforce Unit (MWU) continues to allow services to be provided on-site to employers
and communities throughout the region serving over 70 events and 800 individuals in 2012. The
Mobile Workforce Unit is a moving extension of the 15 Workforce Centers, bringing services directly
to customers in need offering 13 computer stations and a presentation system. With a satellite
internet system, clients can search for jobs, improve their resumes and receive training on site.
In February 2012, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) was recognized by the
Quality Texas Foundation for having applied at the Commitment Level of the Texas Award for
Performance Excellence. Quality Texas recognizes Texas institutions seeking feedback and guidance
along their journey to implementing and refining a management system for performance excellence.
Making the second year of involvement with Quality Texas, WSNCT has begun the Malcolm
Baldridge National Quality journey. Working with a premier state award process, such as Quality
Texas, WSNCT will be poised to receive important recognition and feedback at the national level.
In July 2012, and in partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments, we received the
Achievement of Excellence in Procurement® (AEP) award from the National Procurement Institute,
Inc. (NPI). The AEP award was established by NPI in 1995 and recognizes organizational excellence
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in public procurement. The criteria are designed to measure innovation, professionalism, productivity,
e-procurement, and leadership attributes of the procurement organization. We were one of only 35
government agencies in Texas and one of only 26 special districts in the United States to receive the
award. This is our 2nd consecutive year to receive this award.
In December 2012, Workforce Development won a MarCom Award for our 2010-2011 Annual Report,
Weathering the Difficult Year. The MarCom Awards is an international awards competition that
recognizes outstanding creative achievement by marketing and communication professionals. There
were over 6,000 entries for the 2012 awards from the United States, Canada and several other
countries in the 2012 competition.
Factors Affecting Financial Condition
As a recipient of federal, state, and local government financial assistance, NCTCOG is responsible
for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. Internal controls are subject to periodic evaluation by
management. NCTCOG staff continues to evaluate internal controls and implement
recommendations to strengthen controls and minimize risk.
In developing and evaluating the Council’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy
of internal control. Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and (2)
the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability or
assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognized that (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above
framework. It is believed that NCTCOG’s internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.
As part of NCTCOG’s single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal control
including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that
NCTCOG has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the single audit for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, provided no instance of material weaknesses in internal
control or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations.
NCTCOG's annual budget is a management tool that assists in analyzing financial activities during
the fiscal year. The annual budget is reviewed and formally adopted by the Executive Board prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year. The approved annual budget is used as a control device for the
General Fund while individual grant contracts are used as the control device within the Special
Revenue Funds. NCTCOG’s fiscal year 2013 budget is approximately 67% grant funding and as new
funding opportunities arise throughout the year, they are presented to the Executive Board for
approval.
Other Information
Independent Audit - NCTCOG’s Work Program is funded by a variety of federal, state, and local
government sources. Most of the funding is received through grants, which include audit
requirements. In addition to the audit requirements for individual grants, NCTCOG is required by its
bylaws to have an annual audit made of the books of accounts, records, and all transactions by a
Certified Public Accountant selected by and responsible to NCTCOG’s Executive Board. The firm of
Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P. performed this year’s audit.
NCTCOG has received a single financial and compliance audit each year since 1980. This year,
NCTCOG’s auditors are issuing a report in compliance with A-133 to the U.S. Department of
Transportation (NCTCOG’s federal oversight agency) and the Texas Department of Transportation
(NCTCOG’s state oversight agency). In addition, the state now requires a single audit of the state
funded grants.
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Certificate of Achievement - The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
North Central Texas Council of Governments for its comprehensive annual financial report for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. This was the thirteenth consecutive year that NCTCOG has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded the Certificate of Achievement, a
governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believed that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements. It is NCTCOG’s intention to submit this year’s report to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.
Acknowledgments - The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Department of Administration. Appreciation
is expressed to the members of the Department who assisted and contributed to its preparation. The
Executive Board is also commended for their interest and support in planning and conducting the
financial operations of NCTCOG in a responsible and progressive manner.
Acknowledgment is also given to the representatives of Weaver & Tidwell, L.L.P. for their invaluable
assistance in producing the final document.
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Section

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Executive Board
North Central Texas Council of Governments
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business
type activities and each major fund of North Central Texas Council of Governments (the Council)
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Council’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Council's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
basic financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities and each major fund of
North Central Texas Council of Governments at September 30, 2012, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February, 15, 2013, on our consideration of the Council’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of the testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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North Central Texas Council of Governments
February 15, 2013

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3
through 9 and 35 through 37 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Council’s financial statements. The introductory section, other
supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The other supplemental
information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.
Dallas, Texas
February 15, 2013
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

As management of the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG), we offer readers of the
NCTCOG’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
NCTCOG for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter
of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-xiv of this report.

Financial Highlights








NCTCOG’s assets exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $11,756,229 (net
assets). Of this amount $4,379,872 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to creditors and service implementation.
The total net assets decreased by $7,873,975 or a 40% drop in the current year. The decrease was
mainly due to ongoing Regional Transportation Council (RTC) projects. Sustainable Development
expended $4 million and Congestion Management expended $2.5 million. The planned spend down
will continue through fiscal year 2013.
NCTCOG’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $11,623,083, a decrease
of $7,676,876, in comparison with the prior year. Of the total fund balance, approximately 52% is
restricted for local transportation projects, 3% is reserved for grants and prepaids, 43% is available
for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned) and 2% is assigned.
Due to funding changes, at the state and federal level, Governmental funds total revenues dropped
$26,675,619 or 16% in the current year and expenses went down $32,725,805 or 18% in the current
year.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $5,029,314, or
4% of total governmental fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the NCTCOG’s basic financial
statements. The NCTCOG’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of NCTCOG’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the NCTCOG’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the NCTCOG is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the NCTCOG that are
principally supported by grants and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the NCTCOG include the general fund
and special revenue fund.
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As there are no component units within NCTCOG, the government-wide financial statements include the
general, special revenue and proprietary funds as shown on pages 10 and 11 of this report.
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The NCTCOG, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the NCTCOG can be divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
The NCTCOG maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund and the special revenue fund, both of which are considered
to be major funds. Individual fund data for the major special revenue governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The NCTCOG adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 14 of this report.
Proprietary funds. The NCTCOG maintains two types of proprietary funds. The internal service fund is
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the NCTCOG’s various
functions. The NCTCOG uses an internal service fund to account for its management information
systems. Because this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. NCTCOG uses enterprise funds to account for charges to outside
customers for full costs of the services provided.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-18 of this report.
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Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 19-34 of this report.
Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information can be found
on page 35 of this report.
The combining schedule referred to earlier in connection with the major special revenue fund is presented
immediately following the required supplementary information on pages 38-41 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the NCTCOG, assets exceeded liabilities by $11,756,229 at the close of
the most recent fiscal year. Following is a summary of the government-wide Statement of Net Assets:
NCTCOG'S Government-Wide Net Assets
2012

Assets
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities outstanding

2011

Governmental
Activities

BusinessType Activities

$ 94,446,662

$

Total

Governmental
Activities

BusinessType Activities
$

68,073

$ 94,514,735

$ 98,457,921

1,131,432

13,260

1,144,692

1,368,144

22,100

1,390,244

95,578,094

81,333

95,659,427

99,826,065

78,050

99,904,115

1,191,094

-

55,950

Total

-

$ 98,513,871

1,191,094

1,181,287

Other Liabilities

82,711,800

304

82,712,104

79,092,320

304

79,092,624

1,181,287

Total Liabilities

83,902,894

304

83,903,198

80,273,607

304

80,273,911

1,131,432

13,260

22,100

1,390,244

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for grants
Restricted for local transportation projects
Unrestricted
Total net assets






1,144,692

1,368,144

193,244

-

193,244

184,646

-

184,646

6,038,421

-

6,038,421

13,876,787

-

13,876,787

4,312,103
$ 11,675,200

$

67,769

4,379,872

4,122,881

81,029

$ 11,756,229

$ 19,552,458

$

55,646

4,178,527

77,746

$ 19,630,204

The largest portion of NCTCOG’s net assets, $6,038,421, (51%) is restricted for local projects related
to transportation funded initiatives. In October 2005, NCTCOGs’ Regional Transportation Council
(RTC) announced the 2005 Sustainable Development Call for Projects. In April 2006, the RTC
selected projects and awarded funding for infrastructure, planning, and land banking projects which
began funding at the end fiscal year 2007 continuing throughout fiscal year 2012. Current year
expenses for these projects totaled $9,101,602 and cumulative expenses through fiscal year 2012
amount to $64,956,793, leaving a remaining $6 million restricted for remaining projects. NCTCOG
continues to receive additional local funds for future RTC Sustainable Development projects as
scheduled. Awarded funding includes RTC local funds and anticipated local contributions from
project sponsors in addition to local match funding.
An additional portion of NCTCOG’s net assets, $1,144,692, (10%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., equipment) less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
NCTCOG uses these assets to provide grant related services, they are restricted for specific use
related to grant services; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
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Net assets restricted for grants, $193,244, (2%) are funds that have limitations for use as specified by
the funding agencies.
The remaining balance of net assets totaling $4,379,872, (37%) is considered unrestricted and may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to creditors and for service implementation.

Change in Net Assets. For the year ended September 30, 2012, the Agency’s net assets decreased by
$7,873,975. Following is a summary of the government-wide Statement of Activities:
NCTCOG's Change in Net Assets

Revenues:
Program Revenues
Federal Grant
State Administered grants
Local revenue & In-kind

Governmental
Activities

2012
Business-Type
Activities

$

$

Total Program Revenues

10,839,413
97,922,702
26,132,659
134,894,774

1,939,496

Governmental
Activities

Total

$

1,939,496

10,839,413
97,922,702
28,072,155

$ 12,979,109
119,138,426
29,264,855

136,834,270

161,382,390

2011
Business-Type
Activities

$

Total

1,939,738

$ 12,979,109
119,138,426
31,204,593

1,939,738

163,322,128

General Revenues:
Membership Fees
Interest Income

651,539
41,970

-

651,539
41,970

663,091
218,421

-

663,091
218,421

Total General Revenue

693,509

-

693,509

881,512

-

881,512

Total Revenue

Expenses:
Agency management and administration
Community Services
Emergency Preparedness
Environment and development
RIS local assistance
Transportation
Workforce development
Total expenses
Change in Net Assets before Transfers

135,588,283

1,939,496

137,527,779

162,263,902

1,939,738

164,203,640

6,035,722
18,522,455
2,062,309
2,074,557
2,637,422
56,170,198
55,962,878

1,936,213
-

6,035,722
18,522,455
2,062,309
2,074,557
4,573,635
56,170,198
55,962,878

6,050,266
22,909,179
3,539,299
4,587,918
3,446,598
76,151,018
58,952,928

1,947,896
-

6,050,266
22,909,179
3,539,299
4,587,918
5,394,494
76,151,018
58,952,928

143,465,541

1,936,213

145,401,754

175,637,206

1,947,896

177,585,102

(7,877,258)

Transfers in (out)

3,283

-

(7,873,975)

-

-

(13,373,304)

(8,158)

4,237

(4,237)

(13,381,462)
-

Change in Net Assets

(7,877,258)

3,283

(7,873,975)

(13,369,067)

(12,395)

(13,381,462)

Net Assets - October 1

19,552,458

77,746

19,630,204

32,921,525

90,141

33,011,666

11,756,229

$ 19,552,458

77,746

$ 19,630,204

Net Assets - September 30

$

11,675,200

$

81,029

$

$

Significant components of the net asset activity are as follows:







Governmental activities total revenues decreased by $26,675,619 or 16% in the current year.
This decrease was driven by a $16 million reduction in funding from the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (TCEQ), along with close to $7 million in the cessation of funds from the
American Reinvestment & Recovery Act of 2009.
Governmental activities total expenses decreased $32,171,665 or 18% in the current year. Key
elements of the changes are as follows:
Community services expenses decreased $4,386,724 or 19% compared to 2011. The main
components of this decrease were budget decreases from the Commission on State Emergency
Communications (9-1-1) and Public Safety Interoperable Communication (PSIC) equipment.
Emergency preparedness expenses decreased by $1,476,990 or 42% when compared to 2011.
This decrease was driven by budget reductions from the Department of State Health Services for
6
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Cities Readiness Initiative program as well as from the Texas Department of Public Safety for
several projects including Digital Sandbox, State Satellite, the State Homeland Security Program
and Urban Area Security Initiative Statements of Work, and Super Bowl XLV After Action Review.
Environment and development expenses decreased by $2,513,361 or 55% when compared to
2011. This is a combination of budget decreases on the Solid Waste program from the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality and the timing of allocations of sub-grants and their
reimbursement requests being submitted. 2012 was the first year of a two year Solid Waste grant
cycle and the majority of these expenses occur in year two.
Research and Information Services expenditures decreased $809,176 or 23% when compared to
2011.
The contributing factor of this decrease was a limited regional flight in our
orthophotography program. Every other year either a full regional flight or a limited regional flight
is done.
Transportation expenses decreased by $19,980,820 or 26% when compared to 2011. This was
due to $10 million in budget decreases for the Aircheck program from the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality, $8 million reduced RTC and Sustainable Development spending, along
with reduced expenditures from the American Reinvestment & Recovery Act of 2009.
Workforce expense also decreased in the amount of $2,990,050 or 5% when compared to 2011.
The primary source of the decrease was Child Care funds related to the American Reinvestment
& Recovery Act of 2009 which ended in 2011.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the NCTCOG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the NCTCOG’s governmental funds is to provide information on nearterm inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
NCTCOG’s financial requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the NCTCOG’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $11,623,083 a decrease of $7,676,876 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
43% of this total amount ($5,029,314) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for
spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is
not available for use because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of
the prior period along with future project obligations. The general fund is the chief operating fund of the
NCTCOG. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total general fund balance reached $5,084,930. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 4% of
total governmental fund expenditures.
General Fund. The fund balance of NCTCOG’s general fund increased by $85,319 during the current
fiscal year.
Special Revenue Fund. The fund balance of NCTCOG’s special revenue fund decreased by $7,762,195
during the current fiscal year. The majority of the decrease was net use of prior year fund balance for
transportation related RTC Sustainable Development projects.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
There were administrative adjustments made among functions that resulted in no net change in fund
balance between the original and final budget. The net change in fund balance between the final budget
and actual results was an increase of $83,519, about 9% of budgeted total expenditures. This increase
was mainly due to additional revenue from local sources.
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Capital Asset and Long Term Liability Administration
Capital assets. The NCTCOG’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of
September 30, 2012, amounts to $1,131,432 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes equipment, furniture, and leasehold improvements.

2012
Governmental Activities
Equipment
Leasehold Improvements

$

Total government activities capital assets

2011

449,642
681,790

$

689,177
678,967

$ 1,131,432

$

1,368,144

Detailed information on the NCTCOG’s capital assets can be found in Note G on pages 31-32 of this
report.

Long-term liabilities. At the end of the current fiscal year, the NCTCOG had total long-term liabilities
outstanding of $1,181,287. This debt is related to accrued vacation that is payable to employees at the
time of their departure from NCTCOG.
Balance
September 30, 2011
Accrued vacation

Increases

Decreases

Balance
September 30, 2012

Due Within
One Year

$

1,181,287

$

156,700

$

146,893

$

1,191,094

$

118,843

Total $

1,181,287

$

156,700

$

146,893

$

1,191,094

$

118,843

Detailed information on the long-term debt can be found in Note D on page 29 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
NCTCOG membership dues are calculated based on current population of governmental units as certified
annually by NCTCOG. Per capita membership dues for fiscal year 2013 is estimated at $658,000.
NCTCOG total estimated revenues and program expenses for fiscal year 2013 increased $12.9 million
from fiscal year 2012 largely in the Transportation, Workforce and Emergency preparedness programs.
Transportation programs projected funding increases of $9.9 million; predominately comprised of $7.5
million from the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) and $10.9 million from the Federal Transit
Authority (FTA), along with decreased local contract funding of $9 million. Workforce programs estimated
increased funding of $1.3 million mainly from the United States Department of Labor (USDOL).
Emergency preparedness anticipated increase funding of $1.7 million primarily from the Texas
Department of Public Safety (TDPS).
All of these factors were considered in preparing the NCTCOG’s budget for the 2013 fiscal year.
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Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the NCTCOG’s financed for all those
with an interest in the agency’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of
Administration, North Central Texas Council of Government, P.O. Box 5888, Arlington, Texas, 760055888. This report is also available on the NCTCOG website, www.nctcog.org.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by GASB. The
sets of statements include:


Government-wide financial statements



Fund financial statements:
-

Governmental Funds

-

Proprietary Funds

-

Agency fund

In addition, the notes to the basic financial statements are included to provide information that is essential
to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities

Primary Government
Business-type
Activities

Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Internal balances
Prepaids and other assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS

$

650
66,471,024
27,920,714
(59,645)
113,919
1,131,432
95,578,094

$

8,428
59,645
13,260
81,333

$

650
66,471,024
27,929,142
113,919
1,144,692
95,659,427

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

23,392,793
59,319,007

304

23,392,793
59,319,311

118,843
1,072,251
83,902,894

304

118,843
1,072,251
83,903,198

1,131,432
193,244
6,038,421
4,312,103
11,675,200

13,260
67,769
81,029

1,144,692
193,244
6,038,421
4,379,872
11,756,229

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for grants
Restricted for local transportation projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

$

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Functions/Programs

Operating Grants and Contributions
State/
Local Contracts
Federal
State Admin
and In-kind
Funding
Funding
Contributions

Expenses

Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government
Business
Governmental
Type
Activities
Activities
Total

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
Agency administration
Agency management
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment and development
RIS local assistance
Transportation
Workforce development
Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
Shared services
Total primary government

$

5,276,175
759,547
18,522,455
2,062,309
2,074,557
2,637,422
56,170,198
55,962,878
143,465,541

1,936,213
$ 145,401,754

$

$

119,411
9,291,805
1,428,197
10,839,413

10,839,413

$

$

120,965
12,930,636
1,658,836
1,003,473
27,822,107
54,386,685
97,922,702

97,922,702

$

$

1,100,976
29,816
5,921,671
780,559
1,216,681
607,094
13,940,868
2,534,994
26,132,659

1,939,496
28,072,155

$

$

(4,054,234)
(729,731)
449,263
377,086
145,597
(2,030,328)
(5,115,418)
2,386,998
(8,570,767)

(8,570,767)

$

$

-

$

3,283
3,283

$

(4,054,234)
(729,731)
449,263
377,086
145,597
(2,030,328)
(5,115,418)
2,386,998
(8,570,767)

3,283
(8,567,484)

General Revenues:
Membership fees
Interest Income
Total general revenues

651,539
41,970
693,509

Change in net assets
Net Assets-beginning
Net Assets-ending

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

-

651,539
41,970
693,509

-

(7,877,258)

3,283

(7,873,975)

19,552,458

77,746

19,630,204

11,675,200

$

81,029

$

11,756,229

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Special
Revenue
Fund

General
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

650

$

-

$

650

Investments

11,081,264

55,389,760

66,471,024

Accounts Receivable:
Federal grants
State administered grants
Local grants
Other
Due from other funds
Prepaids
Other assets

68,271
12,263,383
15,570
40,046

5,494,726
21,964,261
391,667
1,789
57,990
-

5,494,726
21,964,261
391,667
70,060
12,263,383
73,560
40,046

TOTAL ASSETS

$

23,469,184

$

83,300,193

$

106,769,377

$

17,825,406
52,703
465,101
41,044

$

5,049,583
12,434,494
59,277,963

$

17,825,406
5,102,286
465,101
12,434,494
59,319,007

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and employee benefits
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

18,384,254

76,762,040

95,146,294

55,616
5,029,314
5,084,930

57,990
193,244
6,038,421
248,498
6,538,153

113,606
193,244
6,038,421
248,498
5,029,314
11,623,083

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable
Restricted for grants
Restricted for local transportation
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$

23,469,184

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

83,300,193

$

106,769,377

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental fund balance sheet (page 12) are different due to the following:
Total Fund Balance - total governmental funds
Add: Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation as of September
30, 2012 used in governmental activities were not current
financial resources and therefore not reported in the governmental
funds balance sheet (excluding Internal Service Fund).
Add: Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost
of certain activities, such as financing of the Geographical Information
System, to individual funds. The net affect of this activity is to increase
net assets.
Less: Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, they are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet.
Net assets of governmental activities (page 10)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$ 11,623,083

1,115,967

127,244

(1,191,094)
$ 11,675,200

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Special
Revenue
Fund

General
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

REVENUES:
Federal grants
State administered grants
Membership dues
Local contributions
Interest income
Program income
In-Kind

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Agency administration
Agency management
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment & development
Research & information services
Transportation
Workforce development
Capital outlay

Indirect Cost Allocation
Contributions to Indirect Costs

651,539
396,508
10,953
-

$

10,839,413
97,922,702
651,539
6,000,683
41,970
311,351
19,820,625

134,529,283

135,588,283

3,468,731
522,548
321,761
515
182,023
350,100
36,945
52,457

2,655,225
18,646,227
2,198,637
2,055,426
2,525,659
57,755,595
56,271,929
176,600

6,123,956
522,548
18,967,988
2,199,152
2,237,449
2,875,759
57,792,540
56,271,929
229,057

4,935,080

142,285,298

147,220,378

-

979,861

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

$

1,059,000

(3,634,081)
(321,138)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

10,839,413
97,922,702
5,604,175
31,017
311,351
19,820,625

(3,634,081)
(321,138)

142,285,298

143,265,159

79,139

(7,756,015)

(7,676,876)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:
Transfers In
Transfers Out

23,374
(17,194)

1,120,936
(1,127,116)

1,144,310
(1,144,310)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES

6,180

(6,180)

85,319

(7,762,195)

(7,676,876)

14,300,348

19,299,959

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

4,999,611
$

5,084,930

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

6,538,153

-

$

11,623,083

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT
OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 11) are different
due to the following:
Net change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (page 14)
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures,
however, in the government-wide statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period.

$ (7,676,876)

229,057

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the cost
of certain activities, such as financing of the Geographical Information
System, to individual funds. This is the net change in fund balances
for Internal Service Funds.

(1,255)

Current year changes in the long term liability for compensated absences
do not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

(9,807)

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the
government-wide statement of activities, but does not require the use
of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense
is not reported as expenditure in governmental funds.
Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 11)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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(418,377)
$ (7,877,258)

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Business Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Enterprise
Fund

Internal
Service
Fund

ASSETS
Accounts receivable
Prepaids and other assets
Due from other funds
Total current assets

$

8,428
59,645
68,073

$

313
111,466
111,779

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

13,260

15,465

TOTAL ASSETS

81,333

127,244

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Unearned revenue

304

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES

304

-

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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13,260
67,769
$

81,029

15,465
111,779
$

127,244

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Business Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Enterprise
Fund

Internal
Service
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Service charges

$

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

1,939,496

$

3,991,943

1,939,496

3,991,943

14,506
2,523
1,500,084
33
8,840
410,227

556,156
96,728
193,554
2,235
59,955
3,084,570

1,936,213

3,993,198

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel
Indirect
Contract services
Travel
Depreciation
Other costs
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

3,283

(1,255)

3,283

(1,255)

77,746
$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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81,029

128,499
$

127,244

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Business Type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Enterprise
Fund

Internal
Service
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from service charges
Payments to other funds for indirect and other costs
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employees

$

1,927,373
(2,523)
(1,910,344)
(14,506)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

3,991,943
(3,408,524)
(14,700)
(556,156)

-

12,563

-

(12,563)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-

(12,563)

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

-

-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

-

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

$

-

$

-

3,283

$

(1,255)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in due from other funds
Decrease in accrued liabilities
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

8,840
2,465
(14,588)
$

-

59,955
(313)
(31,124)
(14,700)
$

12,563
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE A - GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
General Statement
The North Central Texas Council of Governments (the Council or NCTCOG) is a voluntary association of
cities, counties, school districts, and special districts within the sixteen-county North Central Texas region.
The Council was established in 1966 to assist local governments in planning for common needs,
cooperating for mutual benefit, and coordinating for sound regional development. NCTCOG is a political
subdivision of the State of Texas under state enabling legislation Chapter 391 - Local Government Code
(formerly Article 1011(m), Revised Civil Statutes, State of Texas).
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting and reporting policies of the Council relating to the funds included in the accompanying
basic financial statements conform in all material respects to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and applicable to state and local governments.
The following significant accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the accompanying basic
financial statements:
1.

Reporting Entity
Primary Government
Membership in NCTCOG is voluntary. Any county, city or special purpose district within the North
Central Texas region may become a member of the independent association by passing a resolution
to join the Council and paying annual dues. Each member government is entitled to have one voting
representative in the Council’s General Assembly, which is NCTCOG’s governing body. Each year
the General Assembly elects a thirteen (13) member Executive Board that is the policymaking and
oversight body for the Council.
The financial reporting entity is determined in accordance with GASB No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity”, as amended by GASB No. 39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units”.
The accompanying financial statements present the government and its blended component unit,
North Central Texas Council of Governments Foundation, for which the government is considered to
be financially accountable. The governing bodies of the blended component unit are substantially
the same as the Council and, although legally separate entities are in substance part of the Council’s
operations and accordingly, are presented as such.

2.

Basis of Presentation
The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the Council. Historically, governmental
activities are supported by grant funding, indirect cost reimbursements from within the agency and
membership dues, are reportedly separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given program are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
program. Program revenues include operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted
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to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements:
The Council segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are
presented for governmental funds and proprietary funds. These statements present each major
fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements. There are no non-major fund
categories in the Council’s presentation.
Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balances of
current financial resources. The Council has presented the following major governmental funds:
General Fund–
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Council. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general revenues and other
receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.
Special Revenue Funds–
The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, the
expenditures for which are legally restricted for purposes specified in the grant agreements.
These funds include Federal, State, State Administered, and Locally funded grants.
Proprietary Fund Type –
Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income,
financial position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of
Net Assets. The Council has presented the following proprietary funds:
Enterprise Fund – accounts for charges to outside customers for full costs of services
provided, including City Net shared services, law enforcement and court analysis portals.
Internal Service Fund – accounts for the cost recovery of the Geographical Information
System and the agency computer network cost center. This fund accounts for these
computer and maintenance services on a cost reimbursement basis and through user
fees.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personnel and contractual
services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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3.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.
The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the statement of net assets and the operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned. Expenses are recognized at the time the
liability is incurred.
The governmental fund types (General Fund and Special Revenue Funds) use a current financial
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, i.e., when they become
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, revenues are considered available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is
incurred, if measurable.
The accrual basis of accounting and flow of economic resources measurement focus are used in all
proprietary fund types. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned, and expenses (including depreciation) are recorded when the liability is incurred. Privatesector standards of accounting and financial reporting (as issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board) issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with
or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Council has
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
The major sources of revenue are grants, membership dues, local contributed cash, and in-kind
and contributed services as follows:
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a)

Federal, State, and Local Grant Revenue
Grant revenue is recognized when program expenditures are incurred in accordance with program
guidelines. Such revenue is subject to review by the funding agency and may result in
disallowance in subsequent periods.
Deferred revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and
“available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when
resources are received by NCTCOG, before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant money is
received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both
revenue recognition criteria are met or when NCTCOG has a legal claim to the resources, the
liability for the deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

b)

Member Government Dues
All member governments are required to pay dues to NCTCOG. Dues are determined annually and
are recognized as revenues when assessed because they are measurable and are collectible
within the current period.
Dues are reported in the General Fund and funds are transferred to the Special Revenue Fund as
needed to meet matching requirements of the grants.

c)

Local Contributed Cash
Contributions to grant programs from local governments and other participants are recognized as
revenue when grant expenditures are incurred in the case of cost reimbursement grants, and when
courses are completed in the case of Regional Police Academy tuition.

d)

In-Kind and Contributed Services
Local contributions, which include contributed services provided by individuals, private
organizations and local governments, are used to match federal and state administered funding on
various grants. Contributed services are therefore recorded as revenue and expenditures in the
individual grants. The amounts of such services are recorded in the accompanying financial
statements at their estimated fair market values at date of service.
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

4.

Leave Policies
Employees eligible for leave include (1) full-time employees and (2) part-time employees that work a
minimum of 20 hours per week.
Based on full time or part time accrual rates employees may accrue, during the first five years of
employment, up to ten (10) days of vacation leave per year. During the second five years of
employment, an employee accrues up to fifteen (15) days per year, and after ten years of
employment, up to twenty (20) days per year. The maximum of unused vacation leave a full-time
and eligible part-time employee may accumulate is the number of days, which the employee would
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accumulate in three (3) years at their current accrual rate. Upon termination of employment from the
Council, an employee will be paid for unused vacation leave not to exceed the maximum amount
normally accrued based on hire date. Specific information related to vacation accrual is available for
review in the personnel manual. The liability for accumulated vacations ($1,191,094 at September
30, 2012) for governmental fund types, which represents normal accumulations, has been recorded.
The current portion of accrued vacation pay, which would be liquidated with expendable available
resources, is not material.
The Council's sick leave policy permits the accumulation of fifteen (15) sick days per year up to a
maximum of 90 days for full-time employees and seven and one-half (7.5) sick days per year up to a
maximum of 45 days for eligible part-time employees. Employees are not paid for unused sick days
upon termination of employment. Accordingly, sick pay is charged to expenditures when taken. No
provision has been made in the financial statements for unused sick leave. The General Fund is
typically used to liquidate the liability for governmental activities’ compensated absences. Long-term
accrued compensated absences are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources and are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements.
5.

Investments
The Council invests in authorized investment pools and funds. Investments are carried at fair
value. See Note B.

6.

Encumbrances
Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
The commitments (purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds) are not treated as expenditures until a liability for payment is incurred, but are merely used to
facilitate effective budget control and cash planning and management.

7.

State Administered Grants
State Administered Grants are federal grant funds, appropriated state funds, or a combination of
the two, which are allocated to State agencies, and then, passed through to local units of
government.

8.

Transfers
Transfers are the distribution of local cash resources to grant projects requiring a local cash match
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant contract. Local funds are derived primarily
from NCTCOG dues paid by member governments.

9.

Allocation of Employee Benefits and Indirect Costs
NCTCOG Employee Benefits and Indirect Costs are allocated based upon actual expenditures to
all grants in accordance with the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-87. NCTCOG
employee benefits are allocated to grant projects as a percentage of NCTCOG direct labor costs.
Indirect costs necessary to sustain overall operations are allocated as a percentage of total direct
labor costs and employee benefits charged to grant projects. Contributions to Indirect Costs
represent revenues that offset certain costs included in the Indirect Cost Pool.
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10. Transactions Between Funds
Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are
properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund
and as a reduction of expenditures/expenses in the fund reimbursed. All other interfund
transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are recorded as transfers.
11. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements, are reported in the
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund
financial statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are valued at their
fair market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses.
Renewals and betterments are capitalized. See Note G for details on capital assets.
12. Risk Management
The NCTCOG participates in the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML-IRP)
to provide workers' compensation coverage and general liability and property insurance. The
Council, along with other participating entities, contributes annual amounts determined by TML-IRP
management.
As claims arise they are submitted to and paid by TML-IRP. During 2012, the Council contributed
$78,727 to the fund for this insurance coverage. There were no significant reductions in insurance
coverage from the prior year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the
th
year ended September 30, 2012 or any of the three preceding years ending September 30 .
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash of all funds is pooled into a common bank account in order to maximize investment
opportunities. The external investment pools satisfy the definition of cash equivalents, however, it
is the Council’s policy to treat these as investments rather than cash equivalents. NCTCOG elects
to exclude investments with an original maturity of one year or less from the date of purchase from
fair value reporting. These investments are reported at amortized cost.
14. Nature and Purpose of Restrictions and Assignment of Fund Equity
In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are reported in three categories: net
assets invested in capital assets; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. Net assets
invested in capital assets represent capital assets less accumulated depreciation. Restricted net
assets represent net assets restricted by parties outside of the Council. All other net assets are
considered unrestricted.
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the NCTCOG classifies governmental fund
balances as follows.
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Restricted fund balance – includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers (grantors) either through laws and regulations,
constitutionally or through enabling legislation.
Committed fund balance – includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by the Executive Board. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the
Executive Board.
Assigned fund balance – comprises amounts intended to be used by the Council for specific
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the Executive Board or by the Executive Director or
body to which the Executive Board delegates the authority. In governmental funds other than
the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or
committed.
Unassigned fund balance – residual classification of the general fund and includes all
amounts not contained in other classifications.
Unassigned amounts are technically
available for any purpose.
Unrestricted fund balance - total of committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and
unassigned fund balance.
In an effort to ensure the continuance of sound financial management of public resources, the
Council’s unrestricted fund balance will be maintained in the General Fund. This will provide the
Council with sufficient funds to address emergencies, sudden loss of revenue or operating needs,
and unexpected downturns without borrowing.
This policy establishes the amounts the Council will strive to maintain in its General Fund balance,
the conditions under which fund balance may be spent, and the method by which fund balances will
be restored. These amounts are expressed as goals, recognizing that fund balance levels can
fluctuate from year to year in the normal course of operations for any government.
Minimum Unassigned/Unrestricted Fund Balance - It is the intent of the Council to limit use of
unassigned/unrestricted fund balances to address unanticipated, non-recurring needs or known and
planned future obligations. Fund balances shall not normally be applied to recurring annual
operating expenditures. Unassigned/unreserved fund balances may, however, be used to allow
time for the Council to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner, but such use will only take
place in the context of long-term financial planning.
The Council’s unassigned/unreserved fund balance in the general fund should represent no less
than two months of operating expenditures. The Council considers a fund balance of less than two
months of operating expenditures to be cause for concern, barring unusual or deliberate
circumstances.
If unassigned fund balance falls below the targeted minimum level or has a deficiency, the Council
will request increased local funding over the subsequent fiscal years.
It is the policy of the Council that expenditures for which more than one category of fund balance
could be used, that the order of use is: Restricted Fund Balance, Committed Fund Balance,
Assigned Fund Balance, and Unassigned Fund Balance. A schedule of NCTCOG fund balances is
provided in Note K.
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GASB 40 requires the following disclosure for investments:
1.

Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits and Investments
The Public Funds Act contains specific provisions in the areas of investment practices, management
reports, and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other things it requires the NCTCOG to
adopt, implement and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas:
(1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4)
acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio
investments, (7) maximum average dollar weighted maturity, allowed based on the stated maturity
date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences
for certificates of deposit. Statutes and the NCTCOG’s investment policy authorized the NCTCOG to
invest in the following investments as summarized in the table below:

Authorized Investment Type
US Treasury Securities
US Agencies and Instrumentalities
Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Money Market Mutual Funds
Local Government Investment Pools

Maximum
Maturity
less than 2 years
less than 2 years
less than 2 years
less than 120 days
less than 2 years
less than 2 years

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio
100%
85%
100%
20%
50%
100%

Maximum
Investment
In One Issuer
none
none
none
none
none
none

The Act also requires the NCTCOG to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to
investment practices as provided by the Act. The NCTCOG is in substantial compliance with the
requirements of the Act and with local policies.
Cash and investments as of September 30, 2012 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:
Statement of net assets:
Primary Government
Total cash and investments

$ 66,471,674

Cash and investments as of September 30, 2012 consist of the following:
Deposits with financial institutions
$
Cash on hand
650
Investments
66,471,024
Total cash and investments

$ 66,471,674
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2.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the NCTCOG manages its exposure
to risk is to invest in local government investment pools because all invested funds are intended to
cover expenditures that are expected to occur within the next twelve months.
As of September 30, 2012, NCTCOG had the following investments:

Investment Type
TexPool
Logic
TexStar

$

$

Weighted
Average
Maturity(1)
48 days
55 days
51 days

Amount
25,643,066
438
40,827,520
66,471,024

(1) Based on the final maturity dates of each floating rate instrument held in the portfolio.
As of September 30, 2012 NCTCOG did not invest in any securities which are highly sensitive to
interest rate fluctuations.

3.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable)
the Public Funds Investment Act, NCTCOG’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual
rating as of year end for each investment type.

4.

Amount

Investment Type
Primary Government
TexPool
Logic
TexStar

$

25,643,066
438
40,827,520

Total Primary Government

$

66,471,024

Minimum
Rating
Required

Rating as
of Year
End

A
A
A

AAAm
AAAm
AAAm

Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of NCTCOG contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer. As of September 30, 2012 other than external investment pools, NCTCOG did not have
5% or more of its investments with any one issuer.
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5.

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of another party. The Public Funds Investment Act and NCTCOG’s investment
policy do not contain legal policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk
for deposits or investment other than the following provision for deposits: The Public Funds
Investment Act requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least the bank balance less the FDIC
insurance at all times. At September 30, 2012, the Council’s deposits had a carrying amount of $0
and a bank ledger balance of $539,633. Pledged collateral of $2,551,563 was available to cover the
uninsured available balance, however, there was no limit to FDIC insurance for non-interest bearing
accounts during 2012.

6.

Investment in Local Government Investment Pools
NCTCOG is a voluntary participant in various investment pools organized in conformity with the
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds
Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. The Public Funds Investment Act
allows eligible entities of the State of Texas to jointly invest their funds in permitted investments.
NCTCOG invests in the following investment pools:
TexPool: The Comptroller of Public Accounts (the “Comptroller”) is the sole officer, director and
shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (the “Trust Company”) which is
authorized to operate TexPool. Pursuant to the TexPool Participation Agreement, administrative
and investment services to TexPool are Federated Investors, Inc. (“Federated”), under an
agreement with the Comptroller, acting on behalf of the Trust Company. The Comptroller
maintains oversight of the services provided to TexPool by Federated. In addition, the TexPool
Advisory Board advises on TexPool’s Investment Policy and approves any fee increases. As
required by the Public Funds Investment Act, the Advisory Board is composed equally of
participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool
who are qualified to advise TexPool.
TEXSTAR: JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management (USA), Inc. and First Southwest Asset
Management, Inc. serve as co-administrators for TEXSTAR under an agreement with the
TEXSTAR board of directors. JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management (USA), Inc. provides
investment services, and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. provides participant services
and marketing. Custodial, transfer agency, fund accounting and depository services are provided
by JPMorgan Chase Bank and/or its subsidiary J.P. Morgan Investor Services Co. The primary
objectives of TEXSTAR are, in order of priority, preservation and protection of principal,
maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet Participants’ needs, diversification to avoid
unreasonable or avoidable risks, and yield.
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LOGIC: The Cooperative’s governing body is a six-member Board of Directors (the “Board”)
comprised of employees, officers or elected officials of participant Government Entities or
individuals who do not have a business relationship with the Cooperative and are qualified to
advise it. A maximum of two advisory board members represent the Co-Administrators of the
Cooperative. The Cooperative will invest only in authorized investments under the Public Funds
Investment Act. Its general investment objectives are safety of principal, liquidity in accordance
with the operating requirements of the Participants, and a competitive rate of return.
Each investment pool the NCTCOG participates and operates in a manner consistent with the
SEC’s Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 to the extent such rule is applicable to its
operations. Accordingly, the investment pools use the amortized cost method permitted by SEC
Rule 2a-7 to report net assets and share prices since that amount approximates fair value. A Board
of Directors comprised of local government officers, including participants of the investment pools,
performs regulatory oversight in the external investment pools.

NOTE C - FEDERAL AND STATE ADMINISTERED GRANT RECEIVABLES
Federal and state administered grant receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of
expenditures under various programs and grants. All amounts are expected to be collected within the
next year.

NOTE D - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
A summary of long-term liability transactions for the year ended September 30, 2012, is presented below.
Due to the nature of the obligation for accrued vacation, annual requirements to amortize such obligations
are not determinable and have not been presented. Compensated absences are liquidated by all
governmental funds by allocating amounts based on labor hours charged to those funds.
Balance
September 30, 2011
Accrued vacation

Increases

Decreases

Balance
September 30, 2012

Due Within
One Year

$

1,181,287

$

156,700

$

146,893

$

1,191,094

$

118,843

Total $

1,181,287

$

156,700

$

146,893

$

1,191,094

$

118,843

NOTE E - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
The Council offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The International City Management Association Retirement Corporation
(ICMARC) administers the plan. The plan, available to all Council employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. All amounts of compensation deferred, all property and rights
purchased, and all income, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other
beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. NCTCOG has
no fiduciary responsibility for the plan and the amounts are not accessible by the Council or its creditors.
Therefore, the plan assets are not reported in the financial statements.
The Council also contributes to a Section 457 deferred compensation plan for part-time employees. This
plan is also administered by ICMARC. Part-time employees contributed $18,735 during 2012. The Council
contributed a matching $13,558 as the employers match, 3.75% of gross salaries. Part-time employees are
100% vested in the plan from the first contribution.
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Internal transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures/expenses in the fund reimbursed.
All other
interfund transactions are recorded as transfers (See Note A).
The following is a summary of interfund transfers at September 30, 2012:
Transfers in/out other funds:
Transfer In

Transfer Out

General Fund

Amount

Special Revenue

$

Special Revenue Fund General Fund
Special Revenue Fund Special Revenue Fund

23,374

Recovery of depreciation

17,194

Local match dollars

1,103,742

Total

$

Purpose

State funded projects/Local match

1,144,310

Due to/from other funds:
Due From
General Fund

$

12,263,383

Special Revenue Fund

$

-

-

Enterprise Fund
Internal Service Fund
Total

Due To

$

12,434,494

59,645

-

111,466

-

12,434,494

$

12,434,494

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur and/or payments between funds are
made.
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Governmental activities:
A summary of changes in the governmental activities capital assets for the year ended September 30,
2012, follows:
Balance at
October 1,
2011
Governmental Activities
General Capital Assets
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements
Total capital assets being depreciated

$

Accumulated depreciation
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Total governmental funds capital assets, net

$

31

132,288
96,769
229,057

Decreases

(6,367) $
(6,367)

4,362,955
466,680
2,268,614
7,098,249

317,780
100,597
418,377
(189,320)

(6,367)
(6,367)
-

3,922,127
466,680
1,593,475
5,982,282
1,115,967

539,373
1,005
7,378
547,756

5,270
7,293
12,563

(11,498)
(11,498)

533,145
1,005
14,671
548,821

476,516
1,005
7,378
484,899
62,857
1,368,144 $

59,313
642
59,955
(47,392)
(236,712) $

3,610,714
466,680
1,492,878
5,570,272
1,305,287

Internal Service Fund Capital Assets
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements
Total capital assets being depreciated
Accumulated depreciation
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements
Total accumulated depreciation
Total internal service funds capital assets, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

4,237,034 $
466,680
2,171,845
6,875,559

Increases

Balance at
September 30,
2012

(11,498)
(11,498)
$

524,331
1,005
8,020
533,356
15,465
1,131,432
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Balance at
October 1,
2011

Balance at
September 30,
2012

Decreases/
Transfers

Increases

Business Type Activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Accumulated Depreciation:
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

$

7,361,554 $
7,361,554

-

7,339,454
7,339,454
22,100 $

$

-

8,840
8,840
(8,840) $

-

$

$

7,361,554
7,361,554

7,348,294
7,348,294
13,260

Assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more per unit and over three (3) years of useful life.
Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives are as follows:
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements

3 years
5 years
Length of remaining lease

Depreciation expense was charged as direct expense to programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental Activities
Agency Administration
Agency Management
Community Services
Emergency Preparedness
Environment & Development
RIS Local Assistance
Transportation
Workforce Development
Internal Service Fund
Total Depreciation expense-governmental activities
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$

34,258
781
58,608
18,003
21,431
31,569
213,081
40,646
59,955

$

478,332

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE H - RETIREMENT PLAN
ICMARC administers the Council’s 401(a) retirement plan. It is a defined contribution retirement plan,
which provides retirement benefits for all full-time permanent employees. The Council contributed an
amount ($2,185,659) during fiscal year 2012 equal to twelve percent (12%) of the permanent full-time
employees' gross salaries. Full-time employees also contributed an amount of $1,092,829 during 2012
equal to six percent (6%) of gross salaries. Total Council payroll for the year was $18,790,902 including
$18,325,724 payroll covered by the plan. Employees become 40 percent (40%) vested in the Council's
contributions after three full years of employment. An additional 15 percent (15%) is vested for each
additional full year of employment. An employee becomes fully vested after seven years of employment.
The Council’s retirement plan was formed under the authority of the Council Executive Board and the
Executive Board has the authority to amend/or terminate the retirement plan and/or contribution
requirements at any time.

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS
The Council entered into non-cancellable operating leases primarily for office space and equipment.
Rental expenditures under all NCTCOG operating lease agreements were $4,029,988 for 2012.
Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases for NCTCOG and its subcontractors
that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of September 30, 2012, are as follows:
Year Ending September 30
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter (2018-2023)

$

3,934,276
3,721,096
3,407,521
3,105,681
2,945,442
15,647,698

$

32,761,716

NOTE J - CONTINGENCIES
For a majority of the expenditures in Workforce Development (WD) and Aging Programs, the Council
contracts with other governments or local agencies to perform the specific services set forth in the grant
agreements. The Council disburses grant funds to the agencies based on monthly expenditure and
performance reports received from each agency.
WD and Aging program subcontractors are required to have an annual independent audit. The Council
requires each agency to submit a copy of the audit reports. If such audits disclose expenditures not in
accordance with terms of the grants, the grantor agency could disallow the costs and require
reimbursement of the disallowed costs either from the Council or the delegate agency. The Council
generally has the right of recovery from the subcontractors.
For the year ended September 30, 2012, agency costs of various amounts were disbursed for which the
audits have not been received. Based on prior experience, management believes that the Council will not
incur significant losses from possible grant disallowances.
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NOTE J – CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Additionally, grantor agencies reserve the right to perform certain audit work in addition to the work
performed by the Council's independent auditors. Disallowed costs, if any, resulting from such additional
work, would have to be absorbed by the Council. Management does not believe that the Council will
incur any significant costs if such additional work should occur.

NOTE K – FUND BALANCES
In accordance with GASB 54 the NCTCOG classifies governmental fund balances as follows:
DETAILED FUND BALANCE DISCLOSURE
General Fund
Fund

Major Special Revenue
Local
TCEQ
TXWD

CJD

TXDOT

TOTAL

FUND BALANCES:
Non Spendable:
Prepaids
Inventory
Restricted:
Grants
Local Transportation
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES:

$

$

15,570
40,046

-

5,029,314

19,561
-

5,084,930

$

19,561

$

$

57,990
-

-

-

-

6,038,421
248,498
-

5,566
-

117,997
-

50,120
-

193,244
6,038,421
248,498
5,029,314

5,566

$ 117,997

50,120

$ 11,623,083

6,344,909

$

$

$

73,560
40,046

NOTE L – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In preparing these financial statements, the Council has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through February 15, 2013, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued.
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Variance
with Final
Budget
(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts
Original
REVENUES
Member dues
Local contributed cash
Interest income

$

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Agency administration
Agency management
Public affairs
RIS local assistance
Community services
Environmental & development
Transportation
Capital outlay
Total current expenditures
Indirect cost allocation
Contributions to indirect costs
Total expenditures

652,939
314,216
10,000

$

652,939
314,216
10,000

$

651,539
396,508
10,953

$

(1,400)
82,292
953

977,155

977,155

1,059,000

81,845

3,239,493
568,346
310,318
445,013
291,716
200,000
55,000
-

3,186,493
568,346
310,318
445,013
291,716
200,000
55,000
53,000

3,169,241
522,593
300,062
350,722
321,889
182,135
36,946
52,457

17,252
45,753
10,256
94,291
(30,173)
17,865
18,054
543

5,109,886

5,109,886

4,936,045

173,841

(3,772,231)
(360,500)

(3,772,231)
(360,500)

(3,634,081)
(321,138)

(138,150)
(39,362)

977,155

977,155

980,826

(3,671)

-

-

78,174

78,174

Excess (deficiencies) of revenues
Over/(under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out
Charge for use of assets
Indirect allocation to Special Revenue Fund

Budget Basis
Actual

Final

45,000
(43,200)

45,000
(43,200)

23,374
(17,194)
24,339
(23,374)

23,374
(17,194)
(20,661)
19,826

Total other financing sources

1,800

1,800

7,145

5,345

Net changes in fund balances

1,800

1,800

85,319

83,519

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

4,999,611
$

5,001,411
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4,999,941
$

5,001,741

4,999,611
$

5,084,930

$

83,519

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION - BUDGET BASIS
It is NCTCOG's policy to prepare the annual budget on a basis, which includes an equipment usage
charge in the General Fund. Accordingly, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund is
prepared on the basis utilized in preparing the budget, which includes this equipment usage charge.
However, the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund,
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP), does
not include equipment usage charge.
The effect of this difference on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund is an increase in
reported expenditures offset by an adjustment to other sources (uses) in the amounts of the current year
equipment usage charge. After this adjustment is made through the transfers in (out), the net changes in
budget basis versus GAAP basis are the same.
General Fund
Total Net Expenditures (GAAP Basis)

$

Plus Charge for use of assets
Less: Use of assets recovered through indirect
cost allocated to Special Revenue Fund
Total Expenditures (Budget Basis)
Total Other Sources (GAAP Basis)

24,339
(23,374)
$

980,826

$

6,180

Plus Charge for use of assets
Less: Use of assets recovered through indirect
cost allocated to Special Revenue Fund
Total Other Sources (Budget Basis)

979,861

24,339
(23,374)
$

7,145

NOTE B: BUDGETARY CONTROLS
NCTCOG follows these procedures in establishing the General Fund budgetary data reflected in the
basic financial statements:
a)

Prior to October 1, the Executive Director submits to the Executive Board a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

b)

Prior to October 1, the Executive Board formally approves the budget document following a
public hearing.

c)

The approved annual budget is used as a control device for the General Fund. The individual
grant contracts are used as the control device within the Special Revenue Funds.
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e) Appropriations for the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year.
f)

Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at the fund level. Expenditures are monitored
by the Department of Administration. When expenditures are required for functions that have
not been budgeted, authorization to incur the expenditures is requested from NCTCOG's
Executive Board by resolution during its regular monthly meetings.

g) The Executive Director is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between programs; however,
NCTCOG’s Executive Board would approve any revisions, which would increase total
expenditures.
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Other supplementary information includes financial schedules not required by the GASB, nor a part of the
basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.
Such schedules include:


Combining Schedules- Federal, State and Locally Administered Grant Funds



Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities – Agency Fund



Schedule of Indirect Cost (Budget Basis)



Schedule of Employee Benefits



Texas Local Government Code Chapter 391 Indirect Cost Limitations Test



Capital Assets:
By Source
By Function and Activity
Changes by Function and Activity

Additional support for specific grants within the Special Revenue governmental fund can be found in the
supplemental booklet available upon request.

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCALLY ADMINISTERED GRANTS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
State and Locally
Administered
Total

Federal Funds
Total

REVENUES
Federal grants
State administered grants
Local contributions
In-Kind
Program income
Interest income

$ 10,839,413
130,787
8,060,886
-

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Agency administration
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment & development
Research & information services
Transportation
Workforce development
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$

97,922,702
5,473,388
11,759,739
311,351
31,017

Combined Total

$

10,839,413
97,922,702
5,604,175
19,820,625
311,351
31,017

19,031,086

115,498,197

134,529,283

214,810
118,845
1,093
17,447,236
1,396,302
-

2,440,415
18,527,382
2,198,637
2,055,426
2,524,566
40,308,359
54,875,627
176,600

2,655,225
18,646,227
2,198,637
2,055,426
2,525,659
57,755,595
56,271,929
176,600

19,178,286

123,107,012

142,285,298

DEFICIENCIES OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES

(147,200)

(7,608,815)

(7,756,015)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In
Transfers Out

149,047
(1,847)

971,889
(1,125,269)

1,120,936
(1,127,116)

(153,380)

(6,180)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES

147,200

DEFICIENCIES OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
UNDER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

-

(7,762,195)

(7,762,195)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

14,300,348

14,300,348

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

38

-

$

6,538,153

$

6,538,153

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FEDERAL GRANTS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Federal Funds

REVENUES
Federal grants
State administered grants
Local contributions
In-Kind

DOE

EPA

FTA

FAA

HUD

DOL

DOJ

TOTAL

$3,145,980
4,430,321

$1,130,728
1,876,566

$4,379,719
130,787
1,753,999

$324,697
-

$310,681
-

$1,428,197
-

$119,411
-

$10,839,413
130,787
8,060,886

7,576,301

3,007,294

6,264,505

324,697

310,681

1,428,197

119,411

19,031,086

9,541
7,566,699
-

2,216
3,005,323
-

144,451
6,171,864
-

13,148
583
327,840
-

12,708
375,510
-

31,124
510
1,396,302
-

1,622
118,845
-

214,810
118,845
1,093
17,447,236
1,396,302
-

7,576,240

3,007,539

6,316,315

341,571

388,218

1,427,936

120,467

19,178,286

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Agency administration
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment & development
Research & information services
Transportation
Workforce development
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCIES) OF REVENUES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

61

(245)

(51,810)

(16,874)

(77,537)

261

(1,056)

(147,200)

29
(90)

291
(46)

52,911
(1,101)

17,090
(216)

77,670
(133)

(261)

1,056
-

149,047
(1,847)

(61)

245

51,810

16,874

77,537

(261)

1,056

147,200

EXCESS/DEFICIENCIES OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

-

$

-

$

-

39

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
STATE AND LOCALLY ADMINISTERED FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
State and Locally Administered Funds
CJD

CSEC

LOCAL

TDA

Transportation
REVENUES
Federal grants
State administered grants
Local contributions
In-Kind
Program income
Interest income

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Agency administration
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment & development
Research & information services
Transportation
Workforce development
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCIES) OF REVENUES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

711,483
221,944
-

$

5,263,223
890

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES

1,272,499
283,886
43,402

$

3,700,547
-

$

19,709
-

$

1,524,538
3,434,510
-

933,427

5,264,113

1,599,787

3,700,547

19,709

4,959,048

18,090
986,557
957
-

64,472
5,032,686
69,046
96,557

64,940
30,795
8,810,013
105
6,970

1,070,576
53,749
499,145
1,185,084
626,672
4,723
10,000

328
19,701
-

4,959,048
-

1,005,604

5,262,761

8,912,823

3,449,949

20,029

4,959,048

(72,177)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out

$

SECO

Other

1,352

(7,313,036)

250,598

(320)

-

(596)

(1,352)

196,734
(722,064)

64
(183,089)

335
(15)

-

(596)

(1,352)

(525,330)

(183,025)

320

-

EXCESS/DEFICIENCIES OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

(72,773)

-

(7,838,366)

67,573

-

-

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

92,334

-

13,876,787

238,915

-

-

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

19,561

$

-

40

$

6,038,421

$

306,488

$

-

$

-

State and Locally Administered Funds
TCEQ

TDH

Transportation
$

$

5,807,495
(28,988)

DADS

TDPS

TWC

TVC

TXDOT

Total

TXWD

Other
$

765,760
1,174

$

396,629
51,871
-

$

7,037,630
112,460
4,881,811
311,351
-

$

1,301,472
(2,474)
10,402
-

$

54,238,257
2,507,488
-

$

148,428
-

$

20,490,074
168,412
589,771
14,539

$

218,004
-

$

97,922,702
5,473,388
11,759,739
311,351
31,017

5,778,507

766,934

448,500

12,343,252

1,309,400

56,745,745

148,428

21,262,796

218,004

115,498,197

42,456
(6)
5,788,731
-

13,670
2,804
750,513
-

13,177
438,206
-

126,743
12,214,068
996
-

70,671
160,556
1,258,268
2,730
-

639,284
121
1,323,079
54,722,371
57,803

148,428
-

316,008
79,766
214
470,297
20,750,567
5,270

100,007
-

2,440,415
18,527,382
2,198,637
2,055,426
2,524,566
40,308,359
54,875,627
176,600

5,831,181

766,987

451,383

12,341,807

1,492,225

56,742,658

148,428

21,622,122

100,007

123,107,012

(52,674)

(53)

(2,883)

1,445

(182,825)

3,087

-

(359,326)

1,184
(850)

1,828
(600)

3,008
(125)

22
(1,467)

183,554
(729)

(3,087)

-

585,160
(211,295)

-

971,889
(1,125,269)

334

1,228

2,883

(1,445)

182,825

(3,087)

-

373,865

-

(153,380)

(52,340)

1,175

-

-

-

-

-

14,539

52,595

4,136

-

-

-

-

-

35,581

255

$

5,311

$

-

$

-

$

-

41

$

-

$

-

$

50,120

117,997

(7,608,815)

117,997

(7,762,195)

$

117,997

14,300,348
$

6,538,153

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF INDIRECT COSTS (BUDGET BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Actual
Salaries
Benefits

$

1,603,490
680,769

Budget
$

1,678,810
695,027

Indirect personnel

2,284,259

2,373,837

Legal
Audit
Contract services
In-region travel
Out-of-region travel
Equipment use fee
Consumable supplies
Insurance & bonding
Rent
Printing & publications
Equipment rental
Advertising
Maintenance & repairs
Employee recruitment
Communications
Postage
Subscriptions & dues
Other

21,771
91,000
240,165
1,029
13,486
24,339
108,648
23,521
423,143
38,515
219,142
5,444
92,592
2,532
15,044
8,876
100,908
240,805

20,000
91,350
244,901
2,300
17,650
45,000
134,000
36,000
436,378
40,700
221,500
2,500
125,000
7,200
5,719
12,400
133,063
183,233

3,955,219

4,132,731

TOTAL
Less: Contributions to
Indirect costs
NET INDIRECT COSTS

(321,138)
$

3,634,081

(360,500)
$

3,772,231

Indirect costs rate computations:
Net indirect costs
Direct salaries & benefits - all funds

$
$

42

3,634,081
20,894,759 = 17.39%

$
$

3,772,231
21,309,348 = 17.70%

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ALL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Full Time Benefits Programs
Medicare insurance
Medical insurance
Worker's compensation
Flexible benefit plan
Life & disability insurance
Other benefits
Unemployment insurance
Retirement
Vacation
Sick leave
Holiday leave
Other leave
TOTAL

Actual

Projected

$

251,812
1,987,752
55,332
6,730
132,874
72,223
84,068
1,916,809
1,031,710
576,581
735,417
60,949

$

269,494
2,017,609
51,571
7,147
131,873
112,000
22,378
1,935,299
952,711
512,371
711,626
48,753

$

6,912,257

$

6,772,832

Employee benefits rate computations:
Total full-time benefits
Total regular salaries

$ 6,912,257
$ 16,034,234 = 43.11%

$ 6,772,832
$ 16,360,364 = 41.40%

Total personnel costs recap:
Salaries
Benefits

$ 16,034,234
6,912,257

$ 16,360,364
6,772,832

$ 22,946,491

$ 23,133,196

Personnel - NCTCOG
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TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 391 INDIRECT COST LIMITATIONS TEST
FISCAL YEAR 2012 ACTUAL
OCTOBER 1, 2011 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Total Indirect Costs
Expenditures:
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Proprietary Fund
Enterprise Fund
Interdepartmental Transfers for Direct
Charges and Indirect Costs
Total Expenditures
Less:
(1)
Pass-Through Funds
In-Kind Expenditures
Contract Services
Capital Expenditures
Adjusted Expenditures
(1)

$

3,634,081
4,935,080
142,285,298
3,993,198
1,936,213
(7,626,024)
145,523,765

=

2.5%

(67,790,393)
(20,085,647)
(20,854,864)
(229,057)
36,563,804

=

9.9%

Includes Subgrants & Subcontracts

Texas Statutes §391.0115 (e). “A commission may not spend an amount more than 15
percent of the commission's total expenditures on the commission's indirect costs. For the
purposes of this subsection, the commission's capital expenditures and any subcontracts,
pass-throughs, or subgrants may not be considered in determining the commission's total
direct costs. In this subsection, "pass-through funds" means funds, including subgrants or
subcontracts, that are received by a commission from the federal or state government or
other grantor for which the commission serves merely as a cash conduit and has no
administrative or financial involvement in the program, such as contractor selection, contract
provisions, contract methodology payment, or contractor oversight and monitoring.”
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Totals
CAPITAL ASSETS
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements
Total Capital Assets

$

12,257,654
467,685
2,283,285

$

15,008,624

$

9,961,464
94,148
619,601
10,675,213

SOURCES
NCTCOG
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements

GRANT FUNDED
Equipment
Furniture
Leasehold Improvements

2,296,190
373,537
1,663,684
4,333,411

Less: Internal Service Fund Assets
Less: Enterprise Fund
Total General Capital Assets
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548,821
7,361,554
$

7,098,249

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Totals
CAPITAL ASSETS
Local Assistance
Transportation Planning-TxDOT
Regional Information Services
Environmental Resources
Emergency Preparedness
Workforce Development
Community Services
Enterprise Fund

$

Total Capital Assets

1,284,610
731,705
1,301,023
99,054
241,709
3,291,867
697,102
7,361,554
15,008,624

Less: Internal Service Fund
Less: Enterprise Fund

548,821
7,361,554

Total General Capital Assets

$
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7,098,249

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
2011

Additions

Deletions

2012

CAPITAL ASSETS
Local assistance
Transportation planning-TxDOT
Regional information services
Environmental resources
Emergency preparedness
Workforce development
Community services
Enterprise fund

$

Total capital assets
Less: Internal service fund
Less: Enterprise fund
Total General Capital Assets

$

1,220,485
726,435
1,301,023
99,054
241,709
3,234,064
600,545
7,361,554

$

81,990 $
5,270
57,803
96,557
-

17,865 $
-

1,284,610
731,705
1,301,023
99,054
241,709
3,291,867
697,102
7,361,554

14,784,869

241,620

17,865

15,008,624

547,756
7,361,554

12,563
-

11,498
-

548,821
7,361,554

6,875,559
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$

229,057 $

6,367 $

7,098,249

STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the North Central Texas Council of Governments' comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
notes disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Council's overall financial health.
This information has not been audited by the independent auditor.

Contents

Table #s

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Council's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

1, 2, 3 & 4

Revenue Capacity
These tables are to contain information to help the reader assess the Council's most
significant local revenue sources.

5

Debt Capacity
These tables are to present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
Council's current levels of outstanding debt.

6

Economic and Demographic Information
These tables offer economic and demographic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the Council's financial activities take place.

7&8

Operating Information
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the Council's financial report relates to the services the Council provides.

9 & 10

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year. The Council implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003:
tables presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
(UNAUDITED)

2012
Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net assets

$

$

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total business-type activities net assets

$
$

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total primary governmental net assets

$

$

Fiscal Year
2011

2010

1,131,432
6,231,665
4,312,103
11,675,200

$

1,368,144
14,061,433
4,122,881
$ 19,552,458

$ 1,161,862
27,942,962
3,816,701
$ 32,921,525

13,260
67,769
81,029

$

$

1,144,692
6,231,665
4,379,872
11,756,229

$

$

22,100
55,656
77,756

1,390,244
14,061,433
4,178,537
$ 19,630,214

$

$ 1,161,862
27,942,962
3,906,842
$ 33,011,666

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Note: Accrual-basis financial information for the NCTCOG as a whole is only available back to 2003,
the year GASB Statement 34 was implemented.

.
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90,141
90,141

TABLE 1

Fiscal Year
2007
2006

2009

2008

$ 1,497,753
38,909,613
3,646,310
$ 44,053,676

$ 1,255,488
53,519,795
3,776,966
$ 58,552,249

$

484,470
40,565,985
3,254,971
$ 44,305,426

$

498,220
202,931
2,900,375
$ 3,601,526

$

67,345
67,345

$ 1,217,307
128,515
$ 1,345,822

$ 3,759,091
(94,171)
$ 3,664,920

$ 1,497,753
38,909,613
3,713,655
$ 44,121,021

$ 2,472,795
53,519,795
3,905,481
$ 59,898,071

$ 4,243,561
40,565,985
3,160,800
$ 47,970,346

$

2004

2003

546,788
144,383
2,729,099
$ 3,420,270

778,657
127,788
2,418,801
$ 3,325,246

$ 1,170,815
78,233
2,231,218
$ 3,480,266

$ 6,527,148
108,308
$ 6,635,456

$

$

$

$ 7,025,368
202,931
3,008,683
$ 10,236,982

$
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2005
$

$

-

546,788
144,383
2,729,099
$ 3,420,270

$

$

$

-

778,657
127,788
2,418,801
$ 3,325,246

$

-

$ 1,170,815
78,233
2,231,218
$ 3,480,266

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS, LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year
2012
Expenses
Governmental activities:
Agency administration
Agency management
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment and development
RIS local assistance
Transportation
Workforce development
Total governmental activities expenses

$

Business-type activities:
Shared service center
Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary government expenses
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Operating grants:
Agency administration
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment and development
RIS local assistance
Transportation
Workforce development
Local grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Shared services
Total business-type activities program revenues
Total primary government program revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government net expenses
General Revenues
and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Membership fees
Interest on investments
Transfers in (out)
Total governmental activities

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

5,276,175
759,547
18,522,455
2,062,309
2,074,557
2,637,422
56,170,198
55,962,878
143,465,541

$

5,201,324
848,942
22,909,179
3,539,299
4,587,918
3,446,598
76,151,018
58,952,928
175,637,206

2010

$

2009

5,227,937
776,145
20,488,403
2,781,337
4,614,671
2,487,667
75,614,317
59,043,491
171,033,968

$

5,269,854
853,457
22,490,067
2,435,347
5,709,613
3,486,236
63,238,757
53,269,187
156,752,518

1,936,213
1,936,213

1,947,896
1,947,896

1,987,466
1,987,466

2,861,816
2,861,816

$ 145,401,754

$ 177,585,102

$ 173,021,434

$ 159,614,334

$

$

$

$

120,965
13,050,047
1,658,836
1,003,473
37,113,912
55,814,882
26,132,659
134,894,774

238,845
17,129,937
3,378,498
3,799,786
37,938
48,336,809
59,195,722
29,264,855
161,382,390

123,814
15,802,837
3,087,356
1,795,328
158,382
56,793,123
58,439,547
22,639,979
158,840,366

100,626
17,634,359
2,262,037
4,353,732
200,903
42,882,386
51,946,951
21,644,684
141,025,678

1,939,496
1,939,496
$ 136,834,270

1,939,738
1,939,738
$ 163,322,128

2,010,262
2,010,262
$ 160,850,628

1,583,339
1,583,339
$ 142,609,017

$

$

$ (12,193,602)
22,796
$ (12,170,806)

$

$

$

$

$

Business-type activities:
Transfers in (out)
Total business-type activities
Total primary government

2011

(8,570,767)
3,283
(8,567,484)

651,539
41,970
693,509

$

$

$

$
$

693,509

(7,877,258)
3,283
(7,873,975)

(14,254,816)
(8,158)
(14,262,974)

663,091
218,421
4,237
885,749

(4,237)
(4,237)
$

$
$

881,512

(13,369,067)
(12,395)
(13,381,462)

654,835
406,616
1,061,451

$

(15,726,840)
(1,278,477)
(17,005,317)

645,519
582,748
1,228,267

$

1,061,451

$ (11,132,151)
22,796
$ (11,109,355)

$

$
$

1,228,267

(14,498,573)
(1,278,477)
(15,777,050)

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Note: Accrual-basis financial information for the NCTCOG as a whole is only available back to 2003,
the year GASB Statement 34 was implemented.
The Governmental activities revenues have been restated for the years presented to reflect revenues generated
from operating grants as opposed to local grants and contributions.
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TABLE 2

2008

$

Fiscal Year
2006
2005

2007

5,355,259
571,395
19,668,658
4,461,768
4,343,873
2,979,893
59,886,873
48,193,206
145,460,925

2003

$ 2,861,274
497,792
12,957,865
643,622
2,819,256
2,368,924
11,292,631
37,823,520
71,264,884

$ 2,487,596
916,839
15,282,979
619,612
5,936,010
2,088,881
9,988,282
36,598,887
73,919,086

4,802,438
558,360
14,732,789
6,766,770
5,520,315
2,227,484
47,265,285
49,917,806
131,791,247

$ 3,655,700
610,618
15,019,016
1,129,860
2,960,701
2,279,069
14,443,094
44,205,070
84,303,128

$ 2,909,373
947,451
13,912,338
1,090,853
5,607,103
2,987,476
12,346,155
43,430,365
83,231,114

4,023,843
4,023,843

4,484,126
4,484,126

2,094,538
2,094,538

114,631
114,631

$ 149,484,768

$ 136,275,373

$ 86,397,666

$ 83,345,745

$ 71,264,884

$ 73,919,086

$

$

$

$

$

$

78,732
14,759,657
4,547,830
1,943,294
159,905
46,223,986
50,814,449
38,238,325
156,766,178

$

2004

829,212
10,043,056
6,846,840
2,430,434
1,115,696
29,793,889
51,347,719
66,241,118
168,647,964

770,046
10,341,041
1,140,891
1,920,421
1,405,433
13,173,525
45,422,270
9,393,181
83,566,808

133,036
9,827,308
1,157,462
3,942,280
13,906
13,040,326
44,466,690
9,871,427
82,452,435

-

65,024
8,816,107
737,276
1,615,441
10,896
11,838,046
38,717,710
8,633,446
70,433,946

-

112,698
9,386,376
573,179
4,398,181
782,422
9,984,918
36,774,830
8,422,831
70,435,435

1,704,745
1,704,745
$ 158,470,923

1,513,590
1,513,590
$ 170,161,554

8,729,994
8,729,994
$ 92,296,802

114,631
114,631
$ 82,567,066

$ 70,433,946

$ 70,435,435

$

$ 36,856,717
(2,970,536)
$ 33,886,181

$

(736,320)
6,635,456
$ 5,899,136

$

$

$

$ (3,483,651)
$ (3,483,651)

$

$

$

$

$

11,305,253
(2,319,098)
8,986,155

632,215
2,308,855
2,941,070

-

$

2,941,070

$

14,246,323
(2,319,098)
11,927,225

$

617,503
3,230,180
3,847,683

$

3,847,683

$ 40,704,400
(2,970,536)
$ 37,733,864

595,578
321,998
917,576

$

(778,679)
(778,679)

579,019
294,684
873,703

$

$

-

(830,938)
(830,938)

567,314
108,604
675,918

-

917,576

$

873,703

$

675,918

181,256
6,635,456
$ 6,816,712

$

95,024
95,024

$

(155,020)
(155,020)

$

$
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$

$

553,086
84,930
638,016

$

638,016

$ (2,845,635)
$ (2,845,635)

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year - Pre GASB 54
2009
2008

2010
General Fund
a
Reserved
Unreserved
Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved for:
Prepaid items
Grants
Local transportation projects
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total all other governmental funds

General Fund
Non Spendable:
Non Spendable
Spendable:
Unassigned
Total General Fund
All Other Governmental Funds
Non Spendable:
Non Spendble
Spendable:
Restricted for grants
Restricted for local transportation
Assigned
Total all other governmental funds

$
$

$

10,946
4,988,995
4,999,941

$

79,881
221,448
27,721,514

$

$ 28,022,843

2012

$

3,158
4,884,409
4,887,567

$

55,054
796,364
38,113,249

$

$ 38,964,667

$

13,322
4,708,103
4,721,425

$

47,588
645,283
52,874,512

$

$ 53,567,383

Fiscal Year - Post GASB 54
2011
2010

$

55,616

$

80,646

$

47,704

$

5,029,314
5,084,930

$

4,918,967
4,999,613

$

4,952,237
4,999,941

$

57,990

$

36,339

$

79,881

$

193,244
6,038,421
248,498
6,538,153

181,786
13,877,396
204,827
$ 14,300,348

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
a
Includes encumbrances and prepaid items.
Notes:
GASB 54 adopted in 2011
2010 data restated for GASB 54 comparable presentation
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2007

166,551
27,721,514
54,897
$ 28,022,843

$

15,555
4,256,017
4,271,572

48,359
437,221
40,148,643

(66,059)
$ 40,568,164

TABLE 3

Fiscal Year - Pre GASB 54
2005
2004

2006
$

142,193
3,612,647
$ 3,754,840

$

$

$

$

51,762
104,684
156,446

$

$

169,310
3,309,101
3,478,411

42,122
102,261
144,383

$
$

$

$

2003

3,126,462
3,126,462

127,788
127,788
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$
$

$

$

2,937,911
2,937,911

78,233
78,233

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
(UNAUDITED)

2012

FISCAL YEAR
2011
2010

2009

REVENUES
Federal grants
State administered grants
Membership dues
Local contributed cash
Interest income
Program income
In-Kind

$

10,839,413
97,922,702
651,539
6,000,683
41,970
311,351
19,820,625

$ 12,979,109
119,138,426
663,091
7,718,250
218,421
318,323
21,228,282

$ 12,842,963
123,357,424
654,835
7,242,670
406,616
341,782
15,055,527

135,588,283

162,263,902

159,901,817

142,253,945

6,123,956
522,548
18,967,988
2,199,152
2,237,449
2,875,759
57,792,540
56,271,929
229,057

6,037,841
602,541
23,368,882
3,703,670
4,814,780
3,691,229
77,753,457
59,235,482
793,319

6,149,666
611,201
20,913,065
2,919,321
4,842,179
2,688,156
77,112,327
59,291,468
198,978

6,239,753
617,456
22,810,881
2,555,857
5,906,678
3,660,746
64,537,300
53,457,071
614,578

147,220,378

180,001,201

174,726,361

160,400,320

(3,634,081)
(321,138)
143,265,159

(3,718,074)
(292,163)
175,990,964

(3,614,978)
(380,116)
170,731,267

(3,359,333)
(378,949)
156,662,038

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

(7,676,876)

(13,727,062)

(10,829,450)

(14,408,093)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Capital-related debt issued (note payable)
Transfers In
Transfers out

1,144,310
(1,144,310)

1,234,411
(1,230,174)

717,919
(717,919)

1,058,306
(1,086,787)

(7,676,876)

4,237
$(13,722,825)

$ (10,829,450)

(28,481)
$ (14,436,574)

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Agency administration
Agency management
Community services
Emergency preparedness
Environment & development
Research & information services
Transportation
Workforce development
Capital outlay

Indirect cost allocation
Contributions to indirect costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

$
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$

3,391,827
115,989,167
645,519
9,694,057
582,748
445,038
11,505,589

TABLE 4

2008

$ 4,796,333
113,731,520
632,215
26,908,819
2,308,855
436,305
10,893,201

FISCAL YEAR
2006
2005

2007

$

2,130,761
100,276,085
617,503
44,262,299
3,230,180
463,927
21,514,892

$

695,214
73,478,413
595,578
4,342,999
321,998
484,339
4,565,843

$

311,125
72,269,883
579,019
5,383,009
294,684
554,216
3,934,202

2004

$

232,407
61,568,093
567,314
4,824,658
108,604
557,649
3,251,139

2003

$

378,586
61,634,018
553,086
4,917,753
84,930
534,160
2,970,918

159,707,248

172,495,647

84,484,384

83,326,138

71,109,864

71,073,451

5,380,601
580,135
20,020,526
4,527,038
4,380,767
3,000,855
60,937,748
49,234,539
1,423,653

4,780,155
569,182
15,051,041
6,892,294
5,612,603
2,215,495
48,098,352
51,333,120
374,854

3,681,798
636,145
15,442,386
1,144,842
3,020,890
2,323,786
14,761,367
45,410,697
201,959

3,301,741
959,325
14,097,463
1,144,296
5,774,954
3,119,094
12,949,745
43,633,788
348,945

2,586,675
1,399,249
13,070,752
687,678
3,024,371
2,525,289
11,831,488
37,847,555
237,546

3,641,730
15,447,933
659,611
6,089,303
2,229,493
10,518,459
36,777,116
669,279

149,485,862

134,927,096

86,623,870

85,329,351

73,210,603

76,032,924

(2,860,926)
(366,759)
146,258,177

(2,872,021)
(363,527)
131,691,548

(2,160,816)
(352,543)
84,110,511

(2,186,536)
(279,397)
82,863,418

(2,118,195)
(250,015)
70,842,393

(2,080,034)
(204,381)
73,748,509

13,449,071

40,804,099

627,426
(627,426)
$ 13,449,071

149,887
314,725
(340,564)

$

124,048
40,928,147

$

373,873

462,720

267,471

218,893
(303,970)

330,534
(424,710)

295,458
(324,823)

216,998
(222,136)

(29,365)
238,106

(5,138)
$ (2,680,196)

(85,077)
288,796

$
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(94,176)
368,544

$

(2,675,058)

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal
Year
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Notes:

MemberDues

Interest (1)

LOCAL
Contributions (1)
In-Kind

$

$

$

651,539
663,091
654,835
645,519
632,215
617,503
595,578
579,019
567,314
553,086

41,970
218,421
406,616
582,748
2,308,855
3,230,180
321,998
294,684
108,604
84,930

6,000,683
7,718,250
7,242,670
9,694,057
26,908,819
44,262,299
4,342,999
5,383,009
4,824,658
4,917,753

(1) Includes General and Special Revenue

56

$

19,820,625
21,228,282
15,055,527
11,505,589
10,893,201
21,514,892
4,565,843
3,934,202
3,251,139
2,970,918

Program
$ 311,351
318,323
341,782
445,038
436,305
463,927
484,339
554,216
557,649
534,160

TOTAL
$

26,826,168
30,146,367
23,701,430
22,872,951
41,179,395
70,088,801
10,310,757
10,745,130
9,309,364
9,060,847

TABLE 5

State
$

97,922,702
119,138,426
123,357,424
115,989,167
113,731,520
100,276,085
73,478,413
72,269,883
61,568,093
61,634,018

GRAND
TOTAL

GRANTS
Federal
$

10,839,413
12,979,109
12,842,963
3,391,827
4,796,333
2,130,761
695,214
311,125
232,407
378,586

TOTAL
$

108,762,115
132,117,535
136,200,387
119,380,994
118,527,853
102,406,846
74,173,627
72,581,008
61,800,500
62,012,604
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$

135,588,283
162,263,902
159,901,817
142,253,945
159,707,248
172,495,647
84,484,384
83,326,138
71,109,864
71,073,451

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
OUTSTANDING DEBT-GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
Year
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007

Source:
Note:

Outstanding
Note
Payable (1)
$
60,957
103,853
143,322

Annual
Payments
$
60,957
42,896
39,469
6,565

Total Revenues
$
135,588,283
162,268,139
159,901,817
142,253,945
159,707,248
172,495,647

TABLE 6

Payments
as Percent
of Total
Revenues
0.0000%
0.0000%
0.0381%
0.0302%
0.0247%
0.0038%

Details on outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
(1) The Note Payable is for equipment for the Agency
NCTCOG had no debt activity prior to 2007.
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Estimated
a
Population
6,640,290
6,584,130
6,539,950
6,639,630
6,538,850
6,406,450
6,242,800
6,047,800
5,867,400
5,709,950

Year
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Sources:

b

*

Personal Income
$ 287,693,096,416
285,259,943,000
268,491,633,000
269,279,998,000
275,257,974,000
255,363,081,000
238,858,111,000
221,192,290,000
203,669,470,000
190,587,779,000

a

School
c
Enrollment
* 1,289,298 *
1,264,190
1,240,827
1,216,929
1,193,011
1,168,405
1,122,168
1,086,599
1,070,271
1,052,364

Unemployment
d
Rate
5.7%
7.8%
8.2%
8.3%
6.0%
4.3%
4.8%
5.2%
5.9%
6.9%

Yearly NCTCOG Population Estimates.
Income provided by BEA Regional Bearfacts for the
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington, Tx Metropolitan Statistical Area, via tracer2.com
c
Texas Education Agency
d
Texas Workforce Commission, via tracer2.com
N/A - Data not available.
* - Approximation only, as information not published yet
b

Notes:

*

Per Capita
Personal
b
Income
$ 43,325
43,708
41,948
41,764
43,684
39,844
39,924
38,089
35,831
34,166

TABLE 7
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NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND PREVIOUS FIVE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

TABLE 8

2012

a

Employer
American Airlines
Bank of America
Texas Health Resources
Dallas ISD
Baylor Health Care System
AT&T
Lockheed Martin
JP Morgan Chase
UT Southwestern Medical Center
City of Dallas
Total
Total NCTCOG Region Employees

2011

Employees
24,700
20,000
19,230
18,314
17,097
15,800
14,126
13,500
13,122
12,836
168,725
b

Percentage of
Total
NCTCOG
Employment
0.77%
0.62%
0.60%
0.57%
0.53%
0.49%
0.44%
0.42%
0.41%
0.40%
5.26%

a

Employer
Wal-Mart
American Airlines
Texas Health Resources
Bank of America
AT&T*
Baylor Health Care System
Lockheed Martin
JP Morgan Chase
HCA North Texas Disvision
Verizon
Total
Total NCTCOG Region Employees

3,209,334

a

2009

Employees
34,700
20,700
20,000
19,700
18,700
17,500
14,900
13,000
12,300
11,000
182,500

Total NCTCOG Region Employees

b

Percentage of
Total
NCTCOG
Employment
1.13%
0.67%
0.65%
0.64%
0.61%
0.57%
0.49%
0.42%
0.40%
0.36%
5.94%

a

Employer
Wal-Mart
American Airlines
Baylor Health Care System
Texas Health Resources
AT&T
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
Verizon Communication
HCA
JPMorgan Chase
Citi
Total

a

Total NCTCOG Region Employees

3,059,028

a

2007

Employees
35,700
25,952
17,203
16,600
16,000
14,250
14,000
12,304
11,000
10,150
173,159
b

b

Percentage
of Total
NCTCOG
Employment
1.21%
0.72%
0.59%
0.57%
0.47%
0.46%
0.46%
0.40%
0.33%
0.30%
5.51%

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2010
b
NCTCOG, RIS department

2008

a

Employees
37,100
21,935
18,000
17,485
14,400
14,100
14,000
12,300
10,000
9,100
168,420

Total NCTCOG Region Employees

3,072,082

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2011
b
NCTCOG, RIS department

Employer
Wal-Mart
American Airlines
Texas Health Resources
AT&T
Baylor Health Care System
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
Verizon Communication
HCA
Texas Instruments
Kroger Foods
Total

3,115,023

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2012
b
NCTCOG, RIS department

2010

a

b

a

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2013
b
NCTCOG, RIS department

Employer
Wal-Mart
American Airlines
Bank of America
Baylor Health Care System
Texas Health Resources
AT&T
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
JPMorgan Chase
HCA North Texas Division
Verizon Communications
Total

Employees
34,700
24,888
24,189
20,000
17,500
17,097
15,000
13,500
11,400
10,500
188,774

Percentage
of Total
NCTCOG
Employment
1.11%
0.80%
0.78%
0.64%
0.56%
0.55%
0.48%
0.43%
0.37%
0.34%
6.06%

Percentage of
Total
NCTCOG
Employment
1.17%
0.85%
0.56%
0.54%
0.52%
0.47%
0.46%
0.40%
0.36%
0.33%
5.65%

a

Employer
Wal-Mart Stores Inc.
American Airlines
Texas Health Resources
AT&T Inc.
Baylor Health Care System
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
Verizon Communications
Texas Instruments
Kroger Food Stores
Brinker International
Total
Total NCTCOG Region Employees

3,062,897

a

a

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2009
b
NCTCOG, RIS department

Employees
33,500
25,655
17,299
16,200
16,000
14,776
13,800
11,300
10,400
9,600
168,530
b

3,071,797

Source: Dallas Business Journal, Book of Lists 2008
b
NCTCOG, RIS department
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Percentage
of Total
NCTCOG
Employment
1.09%
0.84%
0.56%
0.53%
0.52%
0.48%
0.45%
0.37%
0.34%
0.31%
5.49%

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNCIL EMPLOYEES BY
FUNCTION/PROGRAM LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Function/Program

2012

2011

2010

2009

TABLE 9

Fiscal Year
2008
2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

Agency Management

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Agency Administration

38

39

39

39

34

30

27

24

22

22

3

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Research and Information Services

26

30

32

32

31

27

26

24

24

22

Community Services

44

45

41

40

38

34

32

31

35

37

Environment & Development

18

23

23

24

26

24

24

24

26

26

153

158

149

154

145

116

108

90

82

76

Workforce Development

28

25

22

22

24

23

28

28

27

23

Emergency Preparedness

13

18

18

13

11

9

6

6

5

2

331

316

270

258

234

228

215

Public Affairs

Transportation

Total

Source:

326

345

331

Agency Annual Fiscal Program

61

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year
2012
Function/Program
Local assistance
Transportation - TxDOT
Regional information services
Environmental resources
Emergency preparedness
Workforce development
Community services
Enterprise Fund
Prior Year Balance

$ 1,284,610
731,705
1,301,023
99,054
241,709
3,291,867
697,102
7,361,554
-

2011
$

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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1,220,486
726,435
1,301,023
99,054
241,709
3,234,064
600,545
7,361,554
-

2010
$

1,188,120
617,517
1,264,710
99,054
215,893
2,659,095
600,545
7,335,034
-

2009
$

1,185,086
617,517
1,264,710
99,054
188,670
2,592,517
501,362
7,335,034
-

TABLE 10

2008
$

1,208,926
540,975
1,102,440
99,054
88,164
2,530,547
376,749
7,335,034
-

Fiscal Year
2006
2005

2007
$

772,363
414,588
837,499
99,054
67,451
2,076,129
151,005
8,080,514
-

$

583,680
344,444
800,347
99,054
59,186
2,026,134
130,390
8,080,514
3,967,800

$

63

580,468
334,216
753,631
135,912
39,307
2,081,390
164,217
553,333
3,967,800

2004
$

473,849
439,863
831,112
137,546
39,307
1,993,449
275,751
3,967,800

2003
$

446,430
385,442
751,799
137,546
39,307
1,917,056
275,751
3,967,800

